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Item 1. Financial Statements

Cott Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share and pbare amounts)

Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sale:

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative exper
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm

Operating income

Other (income) expense, r
Interest expense, n

Income before income taxe
Income tax expense (bene!

Net income

Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling

interests

Net income attributed to Cott Corporation

Net income per common share attributed to Cott

Corporation
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average outstanding shares (thousand

attributed to Cott Corporation
Basic
Diluted

PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

For the Three Months Ended

September 29, 201

QOctober 1, 201.

$ 583.¢ $ 611
510.¢ 543.7

73.2 67.€

43.€ 38.1

0.8 0.

28.¢ 29.(

(1.5) 1.2

13.1 14.¢

17.C 13.2

1.2 (4.0)

$ 15.€ $ 17.2
1.2 1.1

$ 14.F $ 16.2
$ 0.1¢ $ 0.17
$ 0.1¢ $ 0.17
94,48t 94,32

95,50 95,14¢

For the Nine Months Ended

September 29, 201

$ 1,733..
1,504.f

228.¢

134.¢
1.7

92.¢

2.2)
40.€

54.4
5.8

$ 48.¢

$ 0.4¢
$ 0.4¢

94,46!
95,59!

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofelmmsolidated financial statements.

3

October 1, 201

$ 1,785
1,560.:

225.2

128.:
0.t

96.4

2.1
43.4

50.¢
(1.7)
$ 52.¢

94,17¢
94,89¢
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Cott Corporation
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensiveeome
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 29, 201 October 1, 201: September 29, 201 October 1, 201
Net income $ 15.¢ $ 17.z $ 48.¢ $ 52.¢
Other comprehensive income (los
Currency translation adjustme 12.t (15.9) 13.t (5.2
Pension benefit plan, net of t! 0.1 0.1 (0.7) 0.t
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative
instruments, net of ta? — 0.€ (0.9 0.€
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 12.€ (15.7) 13.1 (4.9
Comprehensive income $ 28.2 $ 2.2 $ 62.C $ 48.t
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to
nor-controlling interest: 1.2 1.1 3.2 3.1
Comprehensive income attributed to Cotl
Corporation $ 27.2 $ 1.1 $ 58.¢ $ 45.¢

Net of the effect of a $0.1 million and $0.2 miliitex expense for the three and nine months endpté@ber 29, 2012, respectively, ¢
net of the effect of a nil and $0.1 million tax exge for the three and nine months ended Octol2&11, respectively

Net of the effect of a nil and $0.1 million tax ledih for the three and nine months ended Septe2®e2012, respectively, and net of
effect of a $0.1 million tax expense for both theee and nine months ended October 1, 2011, régplgc

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofermmsolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amounts)

Unaudited

September 29, 201 December 31, 201
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash & cash equivalen $ 88.1 $ 100.¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $7.0 (¥&f December 31, 201 252.1 210.¢
Income taxes recoverak 2.9 9.¢
Inventories 219.1 210.C
Prepaid expenses and other as 25.C 19.2
Total current assets 587.2 550.¢
Property, plant & equipmel 488.1 482.2
Goodwill 130.¢ 129.¢
Intangibles and other assi 324.1 341.1
Deferred income taxe 2.8 4.1
Other tax receivabl 1.C 1.C
Total assets $ 1,534.( $ 1,508.¢
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Current maturities of lor-term debt $ 1.8 $ 3.4
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 247.1 281.]
Total current liabilities 248.¢ 284.k
Long-term debi 602.1 602.1
Deferred income taxe 37.t 34.1
Other lon¢-term liabilities 15.4 20.C
Total liabilities 903.¢ 940.7
Equity
Capital stock, no pe 95,161,968 (December 31, 2C- 95,101,230) shares issu 395.7 395.¢
Treasury stocl (2.3 (2.7
Additional paic-in-capital 46.1 42.€
Retained earning 189.t 144.1
Accumulated other comprehensive I (11.9 (24.9)
Total Cott Corporation equity 617.¢ 555.¢
Non-controlling interest: 12.2 12.4
Total equity 630.1 568.2
Total liabilities and equity $ 1,534.( $ 1,508.¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofermmsolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited

Operating Activities
Net income
Depreciation & amortizatio
Amortization of financing fee
Shar-based compensation expel
Increase (decrease) in deferred income
taxes
Gain on bargain purcha
Loss on disposal of property, plant &
equipmen
Contract termination paymer
Other nor-cash item:
Change in operating assets and liabili
net of acquisition
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Other asset
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Income taxes recoverak
Net cash provided by
operating activitie:

Investing Activities
Acquisition
Additions to property, plant & equipme
Additions to intangibles and other ass
Proceeds from sale of property, plant

equipmen
Proceeds from insurance recovel
Other investing activitie
Net cash used in investing
activities

Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term debr
Borrowings under ABL
Payments under AB
Distributions to no-controlling interest:
Exercise of option
Common share repurcha
Financing fee:
Net cash used in financing
activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢

Net increase (decrease) in cash & ca:
equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents, beginning ¢
period

Cash & cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow
information:

For the Three Months Ended

September 29, 201

$ 15.¢
247

0.8

1.3

41.C

47.1
$ 88.1

October 1, 201

$ 17.
24.C

1.1

(1.6)

4.2)

(25.7)
(8.1)
(1.9)

24.C
$ 28.2

For the Nine Months Ended

September 29, 201

$ 48.¢

(0.8)

(36.9)
(5.9
(5.5

0.7

(12.9)

100.¢
$ 88.1

October 1, 201

$ 52.¢
71.2

2.6

2.2

2.9)

0.5
(3.1)
1.7

(41.5)
0.4
0.
0.2

(22.9

59.¢

(25.7)
(31.9)
(3.

0.1

(1.8)
(62.7)

(5.2)
2241

(231.9)

4.2)
0.2



Cash paid for intere: $ 15.¢ $ 16.2 $ 41.5 $ 44.1
Cash paid for income taxes (excludes
refunds) $ 0.t $ 0.2 $ 0.¢ $ 4.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofelmmsolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Equity
(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amounts)

Unaudited

Cott Cor|

poration Equity

Number of

Common Share Treasury Shares

(In thousands)

Number of

(In thousands)  Capital Stock

Treasury Additional Paid-in-

Stock Capital

Retainec
Earnings

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Loss

Non-Controlling

Interests Total Equity

Balance at
January 1,
2011

Options exercise
Treasury shares
issued - PSU
Plan
Treasury shares
issuec- EISPP
Common shares
issued -
Directors’share
awards
Share-based
compensatiol
Contributions fron
non-controlling
interests
Distributions to
non-controlling
interests
Comprehensive
income
Currency
translatior
adjustmer
Pension
benefit
plan, net
of tax
Unrealized
gain on
derivative
instruments
net of tax
Net income

94,75(
27¢

76

1,051 $ 395.€ $

0.2

(181)

(196)

32 $

(0.5)

(0.€)

0.7

15

40.€ $106.5 $

49.5

(17.5 $

13.C $ 535.

2
0.2
2

1.8 1.8

(4.2) (4.2)

(5.2)

0.€
52.€

Balance at
October 1,

2011 95,10:

674 $ 395¢ %

2.1 $ 41.¢

$156.C $

(21.6) $

13.7 583.¢

Balance at
December 31,
2011

Common shares
issued -
Directors’share
awards

Common shares
repurchase

Share-based
compensatiol

Distributions to
non-controlling
interests

Comprehensive

95,10:

96.C

(35.9)

674 $ 395¢ $

0.2)

2.1 $

42.€ $144.1 $

(24.7) $

12.4 568.2

0.9)

2.8

(3.9 (3.9)



income
Currency
translatiol
adjustmel — — — — — — 13.7 (0.2 13.t
Pension
benefit
plan, net
of tax — — — — — — (0.7 — (0.7
Unrealized
loss on
derivative
instrumer
net of tax — — — — — — 0.3 — (0.3
Net income — — — — — 45k — 3.4 48.¢
Balance at
September 29,
2012 95,16: 674 $ 3957 $ (2.1) $ 46.1 $189.t $ (119 $ 122 $ 630.]

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofelmmsolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Unaudited

Note 1 — Business and Recent Accounting Pronouncente
Description of Busines:

Cott Corporation, together with its consolidatetsdiaries (“Cott,” “the Company,” “our Company,Cbtt Corporation,” “we,” “us,” or
“our”), is one of the world’s largest producershafverages on behalf of retailers, brand ownersd@idbutors. Cott produces multiple types of
beverages in a variety of packaging formats anessimcluding carbonated soft drinks (“CSDs”), 108B€lf stable juice and juice-based
products, clear, still and sparkling flavored waj@nergy products, new age beverages, and reatiyntoteas, as well as alcoholic beverages
for brand owners.

Basis of Presentatiol

The accompanying interim unaudited consolidatedrfaial statements have been prepared in accordatitéhe instructions to Form 10-
Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X and in accordandith U.S. generally accepted accounting prinsigf&AAP”) for interim financial
reporting. Accordingly, they do not include allénfnation and notes presented in the annual comdetidinancial statements in conformity
with U.S. GAAP. In the opinion of management, ajustments (consisting of normal recurring accruedsmsidered necessary for a fair
statement of our results of operations for therimtgoeriods reported and of our financial conditasof the date of the interim balance sheet
have been included. This Quarterly Report on Fobr@lIshould be read in conjunction with the annuwigit®d consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes in our AnnuabiiRep Form 10-K for the year ended December 3112The accounting policies used in
these interim consolidated financial statementsansistent with those used in the annual congelitifinancial statements.

The presentation of these interim consolidatedniine statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP regsi management to make estim.
and assumptions that affect the amounts reportdtkigonsolidated financial statements and accowpipamotes.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
ASU 201-02—Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): fires Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impagmt

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardafiq“*FASB”) amended its guidance in regards ttirigsndefinite-lived intangible
assets for impairment in order to reduce the codtcamplexity of performing an impairment test ifwdefinite-lived intangible assets by
simplifying how an entity tests those assets fquaimment and to improve consistency in impairmestihg guidance among long-lived asset
categories. The amendment permits an entity firsissess qualitative factors to determine whethgmiore likely than not that an indefinite-
lived intangible asset is impaired as a basis &enining whether it is necessary to perform thangjtative impairment test in accordance
with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Soptc 350-30, “Intangibles—Goodwill and Other"General Intangibles Other than
Goodwill. The more-likely-than-not threshold is definechasing a likelihood of more than 50 percent.

The amendments are effective for annual and interipairment tests performed for fiscal years beigigrafter September 15, 2012.
Early adoption is permitted, including for annuatianterim impairment tests performed as of a afere July 27, 2012, if a public entity’s
financial statements for the most recent annuaiterim period have not yet been issued. We haepted this guidance and incorporated it
into our assessment procedures. The adoption®fthdance did not have a material impact on oosalidated financial statements.

ASU 201-12— Comprehensive Income: Deferral of the Effectiveelfat Amendments to the Presentation of Reclaasdits of ltems Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accogii8tandards Update' ASU') No. 201-05

In November 2011, the FASB deferred part of the nélas on the presentation of other comprehensi#enme as required by ASU 2011-
05. As written, the guidance in ASU 2011-05 woudd/é required that reclassification adjustments fother comprehensive income to net
income be presented by income statement line iiéost respondents pointed out that the informatamuired for separate presentation of
reclassification adjustments in the statements mudype available in a timely manner due to the gt there is currently no process and
control in place to collect and summarize the l®faletailed information required for such preséata The amendments in this ASU are
effective at the same time as the amendments in 2@1-05 so that entities will not be required donply with the presentation requirements
in ASU 2011-05 that this ASU is deferring. The daedéis effective for the fiscal year beginningeafDecember 15, 2011.

8
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ASU 201-05— Comprehensive Income: Presentation of Compsate Income

In June 2011, the FASB amended its guidance oprésentation of comprehensive income in finandatesnents to improve the
comparability, consistency and transparency ofrfone reporting and to increase the prominencéenfi$ that are recorded in other
comprehensive income. The new accounting guidaempgines entities to report components of comprafiemscome in either (i) a continuous
statement of comprehensive income or (i) two saealbut consecutive statements. The provisiongisfiew guidance are effective for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those years, fi@gg after December 15, 2011. We have adoptedyjthidance and presented the compon
of comprehensive income in two separate but conisecstatements. This standard affects the presenthut does not have a financial impact
on our consolidated financial statements.

ASU 201-08— Intangibles-Goodwill and Other: Testing Godtifair Impairment

In September 2011, the FASB amended its guidanoegiards to testing goodwill for impairment to agklr concern raised about the cos
and complexity of performing the first step of tis-step goodwill impairment test required undeiGAEopic 350 — “Intangible§oodwill anc
Other.” The objective of this update is to simplifgw entities, both public and nonpublic, test geitifor impairment. The amendments in the
update permit an entity to first assess qualitaftators to determine whether it is more likelyrtireot that the fair value of a reporting unit is
less than its carrying amount as a basis for détémmwhether it is necessary to perform the twepsjoodwill impairment test described in
ASC Topic 350. The more-likely-than-not threshaldiefined as having a likelihood of more than 5@ @et. The amendments are effective fol
annual and interim goodwill impairment tests parfed for fiscal years beginning after December 08,12 We have adopted this guidance an
incorporated it into our goodwill assessment proicesl.

Note 2 — Acquisitions

On August 17, 2010, we completed the acquisitiosudiistantially all of the assets and liabilitieCtiffstar Corporation (“Cliffstar”) and
its affiliated companies for approximately $503.0lion in cash, $14.0 million in deferred considioa to be paid over three years, of which
$4.7 million was paid in each of the third quadé2011 and the third quarter of 2012, and contmgensideration of up to $55.0 million (the
“Cliffstar Acquisition”). The first $15.0 million bthe contingent consideration was based uponc¢he@ement of milestones in certain
expansion projects in 2010, which were achieve2Dit0. The remainder of the contingent consideratiags based on the achievement of
certain performance measures during the fiscal gepded January 1, 2011.

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€far of certain objections to the performanceaswees used to calculate the
contingent consideration, and the seller assertddim for amounts in excess of the amounts accagembntingent consideration at July 2,
2011. During the third and fourth quarters of 20C€&{t made interim payments to the seller equ&ltb.0 million and $8.6 million,
respectively. The payment of $21.0 million was ofea $4.7 million refund due to Cott as a resultrf final determination of working capital,
and the payment of $8.6 million included $0.9 raoitlin settlement of certain of the seller’s objews to the calculation of the contingent
consideration. The seller’'s remaining objectionth®calculation of the contingent consideratios srbject to an ongoing binding arbitration
process under the terms of the asset purchasenagmeeTl he seller is seeking up to $12.1 milliomdditional contingent consideration. The
final resolution of these matters may result in ante payable to the seller that vary from the amo@ipost-closing payments previously made
to the seller of $34.3 million. We are currentlyabie to predict the ultimate outcome of this actidny changes in the fair value of contingent
consideration will be recorded in our Consolida&tatements of Operations.

During the first quarter of 2012, our United Kingdd“U.K.”) reporting segment acquired a beverage wholesale business based in
Scotland for approximately $5.0 million. The busisevas purchased from a company in administratidnpaovided a number of benefits to
our U.K. reporting segment, including increaseddpiat offerings and market share, logistical syresghrough expansion into Scotland and
access to an additional production line. The adfipishas been accounted for using the purchasbodeaif accounting for business
combinations, and related operating results afediecl in the Consolidated Statements of Operafionthe periods subsequent to the
acquisition. The identified assets, which incluétecentory, property, plant and equipment, trade esand customer lists, were recorded at
their estimated fair values, which exceeded thevaue of the purchase price of the business. Aliagly, the acquisition has been accounted
for as a bargain purchase and, as a result, wgmézsml a gain of approximately $0.9 million asstedawith the acquisition. The gain is
included in the other (income) expense, net seatfdhe Consolidated Statements of Operations.

9
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Note 3 — Share-Based Compensation

The table below summarizes the share-based contpansapense for the three and nine months endpté®der 29, 2012 and
October 1, 2011. This share-based compensatiomsgpeas recorded in selling, general and admitiisraxpenses in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations. As used below: (i) “Rerfmce-based RSUs” mean restricted share unitspgifiormance-based vesting granted
under the Company’s 2010 Equity Incentive Plan {8840 Equity Incentive Plan”), (ii) “Time-based RS’ mean restricted share units with
time-based vesting granted under the 2010 Equdgritive Plan, and (iii) “Stock options” mean noraliied stock options granted under the
2010 Equity Incentive Plan and the Restated 198&@on Share Option Plan (the “1986 Option Plan”).

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
September 29, 201 October 1, 201 September 29, 201 October 1, 201

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Stock option:s $ 01 $ —  $ 03 $ —

Director¢ share award — — 0.7 0.7
Performanc-based RSU 0.2 (2.7) 0.4 (1.2
Time-based RSU 1.C 1.1 2.1 2.7
Total $ 12 $ (1.6) $ 35 §$ 2.2

As of September 29, 2012, the unrecognized shaseebeompensation expense and years we expecbogniee the future compensation
expense were as follows:

Unrecognized shar-based Weighted average years expect
compensation expense as
September 29, 2012

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except yea to recognize compensation

Stock options $ 1.1 2.3
Performanc-based RSU 1.€ 2.3
Time-based RSU 3.3 1.7
Total $ 6.C

Stock option activity for the nine months endedt8eyber 29, 2012 was as follows:

Weighted averagt

Shares

(in exercise price

thousands (Canadian $
Balance at December 31, 20 284 $ 20.41
Awarded 38t 6.47
Forfeited or expirel (200) 24.4(
Outstanding at September 29, 2( 46€ $ 7.2¢
Exercisable at September 29, 2( 12t $ 9.4¢

During the nine months ended September 29, 20I®riRence-based RSU and Time-based RSU activityagdellows:

Number of
Performance-basec Number of
(in thousands of share RSUs Time-based RSU
Balance at December 31, 20 2,31¢ 1,54¢
Awarded 331 44z
Forfeited (267) (221
Outstanding at September 29, 2( 2,38 1,76¢

Stock options awarded during the nine months eisggdember 29, 2012 were granted under the 201@Hquaentive Plan. Stock
options outstanding at December 31, 2011 were gdamder the 1986 Option Plan. The Board of Dimscterminated the 1986 Option Plan
effective as of February 23, 2011. In connectiothwhe termination of the 1986 Option Plan, outdbag options will continue in accordance
with the terms of the 1986 Option Plan until exseed, forfeited or terminated, as applicable. Nthierr awards will be granted under the 1986
Option Plan.

10
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Average Canadian to U.S. Dollar Exchange Rate fohe Nine Months Ended September 29, 2012

The weighted average exercise prices for optiomdoite 3 are disclosed in Canadian dollars. Thesthblow represents the average
Canadian dollar to U.S. dollar exchange rate ferrtine months ended September 29, 2012:

For the Nine Months Endec
September 29, 201.
Average exchange rate $ 0.99¢

Note 4 — Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

Income tax expense was $5.5 million on pretax inre@f$54.4 million for the nine months ended Septen?9, 2012. The year to date
income tax expense was primarily the result ofro@rding of $4.3 million of allowances againsteteéd tax assets in the U.S. that are
uncertain to be realized, reduced by $1.8 millielated to an audit settlement, the lapse of atstafuimitation and an enacted decrease in the
U.K. statutory rate. For the nine months ended mtd, 2011, the income tax benefit was $1.7 milbo pretax income of $50.9 million, due
partially to a favorable competent authority setéat and an enacted decrease in the U.K. stattat@yDuring the second quarter of 2011, we
completed a reorganization of our legal entity&ute and refinanced intercompany debt. As a reduliese activities, our annual effective tax
rate was lower than the statutory rate for 201liamdso expected to be lower than the statutdeyfa 2012.

Note 5 — Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is computed\bglidg net income by the weighted-average numbe&oaimon shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted net income per commoarshis calculated using the weighted-average nuwib@mmon shares outstanding
adjusted to include the effect, if dilutive, of theercise of in-the-money stock options, Perfornealngsed RSUs and Time-based RSUs.

A reconciliation of the denominators of the basid diluted net income per common share computat#as follows:

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

(in thousands of share September 29, 201 October 1, 201. September 29, 201 October 1, 201
Weighted average number of shares outstan

- basic 94,48¢ 94,32t 94,46: 94,17¢
Dilutive effect of Stock option 32 34 32 34
Dilutive effect of Performanc-based RSU 51 — 43 —
Dilutive effect of Time-based RSU 1,02 787 1,05¢ 68€
Adjusted weighted average number of share

outstanding- diluted 95,59¢ 95,14¢ 95,59: 94,89¢

We excluded 392,479 (October 1, 2011 — 233,50@kstptions from the computation of diluted net im@mper share because the
options’ exercise price was greater than the awenagrket price of the common shares or they wetieddative. Shares purchased on the oper
market and held by independent trusts are categgbas treasury shares under applicable accountieg. We excluded 674,397 (October 1,
2011 - 674,397) treasury shares held in variousdiin the calculation of basic and diluted earsipgr share.

11
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Note 6 — Segment Reporting

We produce multiple types of beverages in a vaéfyackaging formats and sizes, including CSD8% 8helf stable juice and juice-
based products, clear, still and sparkling flavoseaders, energy products, new age beverages, adg-te-drink teas, as well as alcoholic
beverages, on behalf of retailers, brand ownergiéstdbutors through five reporting segments —tN@merica (which includes our U.S.
operating segment and our Canada operating segrikeKt)(which includes our United Kingdom reportingit and our Continental European
reporting unit), Mexico, Royal Crown InternatiofdRCI”) and All Other.

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI All Other Total
For the Three Months Ended September 29, 2012
External revenu? $ 4395 $125¢ $97 $983 $ — $ 583.¢
Depreciation & amortizatio 21.1 3.2 0.4 — — 247
Operating income (los! 18.¢ 7.€ (1.0 2.8 — 28.€
Additions to property, plant & equipme 10.C 1.7 1.t — — 13.2
For the Nine Months Ended September 29, 201
External revenu? $1,323. $356.z $29.C $251 $ — $1,733.¢
Depreciation & amortizatio 61.2 9.€ 1.2 — — 72.2
Operating income (los! 67.4 21.t (3.2 7.1 — 92.¢
Additions to property, plant & equipme 39.C 9.€ 1.6 — — 50.€
As of September 29, 201
Property, plant & equipmel $ 3822 $ 971 $8& $— $ — $ 488.1
Goodwill 126.: — — 4.5 — 130.¢
Intangibles and other assi 309.: 14.4 0.4 — — 324.]
Total asset? 1,227 262.% 28.€ 15.1 0.7 1,534.(

! Intersegment revenue between North America andttier reporting segments was $4.9 million and $tdlfon for the three and nine

months ended September 29, 2012, respecti

2 Excludes intersegment accounts receivables, ingsrand notes receivab

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI All Other Total
For the Three Months Ended October 1, 201
External revenu? $ 468.1 $124f $127 $6C $ — $ 611.c
Depreciation & amortizatio 20.1 S 0.4 — — 24.C
Operating income (los! 19.¢ 8.2 (0.9 1.8 — 29.C
Additions to property, plant & equipme 6.8 1.2 0.1 — — 8.1
For the Nine Months Ended October 1, 201
External revenu? $1,388.: $336.6 $40.2 $201 $ — $1,785.
Depreciation & amortizatio 59.7 10.z 1kt — — 71.4
Operating income (lost 70.€ 221 (3.0 6.1 — 96.4
Additions to property, plant & equipme 23.2 8.1 0.1 — — 314
As of December 31, 201
Property, plant & equipmel $ 3831 $ 89¢ $9: $— $ — $ 482.:
Goodwill 125.1 — — %5 — 129.¢
Intangibles and other assi 326.1 14.€ 0.4 — — 341.1
Total asset? 1,231. 237.( 28.2 11.5 0.¢ 1,508.¢

! Intersegment revenue between North America andttier reporting segments was $3.3 million and $hdilbon for the three and nine

months ended October 1, 2011, respecti

2 Excludes intersegment accounts receivables, ingtand notes receivab

A significant portion of our revenue is concentdhite a small number of customers. For the nine oehded September 29, 2012, sale
to Walmart accounted for 31.3% (October 1, 20119%) of our total revenues, 36.3% of our North Aigeereporting segment revenues
(October 1, 2011 — 36.1%), 15.4% of our U.K. rejpgrsegment revenues (October 1, 2011 — 14.7%)2&r% of our Mexico reporting
segment revenues (October 1, 2011 — 46.5%).
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Credit risk arises from the potential default afustomer in meeting its financial obligations to @sncentrations of credit exposure may
arise with a group of customers that have simit@nemic characteristics or that are located insdrae geographic region. The ability of such
customers to meet obligations would be similarfgeted by changing economic, political or otherditions. We are not currently aware of
any facts that would create a material credit risk.

Revenues are attributed to operating segments loawstek location of the customer. Revenues by tipgraegment were as follows:

(in millions of U.S. dollars

For the Three Months Ended
September 29, 201 October 1, 201:

For the Nine Months Ended

September 29, 201

October 1, 201

United States $ 388.( $ 414.: $ 1,169.( $ 1,236.¢
Canade 63.2 66.C 190.: 189.¢
United Kingdom 125.t 124.t 356.2 336.¢
Mexico 9.7 12.7 29.C 40.:
RCI 9.3 6.C 25.1 20.1
Elimination? (11.9 (12.9) (36.2) (38.9)

$ 583.¢ $ 611.% $ 1,733. $ 1,785

Represents intersegment revenue among our opesagrgents, of which $4.9 million and $13.0 milli@presents intersegment revenue
between the North America reporting segment andther operating segments for the three and ningtmended September 29, 2012,
respectively, compared to $3.3 million and $11.8iom for the three and nine months ended Octoh&011, respectively

Revenues by product were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended September 29, 201

(in millions of U.S. dollars North America  United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenus

Carbonated soft drink $ 182.: $ 43.1 51 $ 0.2 $ 230.
Juice 133.7 3.7 0.2 0.4 138.1
Concentratt 3.2 0.t — 8.t 12.5
All other products 120.( 78.2 4.3 0.1 202.¢
Total $ 439.: $ 125.F 9.7 $ 9.2 § 583.¢

For the Nine Months Ended September 29, 201

(in millions of U.S. dollars North America  United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenus

Carbonated soft drink $ 533.2 $ 121.¢ 164 $ 023 $ 671t
Juice 406.¢ 10.5 0.7 1.1 419.2
Concentratt 9.€ 1.8 — 23.€ 35.C
All other products 373.3 222.1 11.€ 0.1 607.4
Total $ 1,323 $ 356.2 20 $ 251 $ 1,733
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For the Three Months Ended October 1, 201

(in millions of U.S. dollars North America  United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenut

Carbonated soft drink $ 192¢ $ 475 3 9.6 $ — $ 249¢
Juice 144.] 34 0.7 — 148.2
Concentratt 2.t 0.7 — 6.C 9.2
All other products 128.5 72.¢ 2.4 — 204.(
Total $ 4687 $ 1245 ¢ 127 $ 6. $ 611

For the Nine Months Ended October 1, 201

(in millions of U.S. dollars North America  United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenut

Carbonated soft drink $ 549.¢ $ 134.¢ $ 312 $ — $ 715«
Juice 456.1 9.€ 24 — 468.:
Concentratt 6.8 2.4 — 20.1 29.Z
All other products 375.: 190.¢ 6.7 — 572.
Total $ 1,388 $ 336 $§ 402 $ 201 $ 1,785

Property, plant and equipment by operating segmenf September 29, 2012 and December 31, 201 asviadlows:

(in millions of U.S. dollars

United State!
Canade

United Kingdom
Mexico

Note 7 — Inventories

September 29, 201 December 31, 201
$ 333.t $ 336.2
48.7 46.€

97.1 89.¢

8.8 9.3

$ 488.1 $ 482.%

The following table summarizes inventories as git8mber 29, 2012 and December 31, 2011

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Raw materials
Finished good
Other

September 29, 201 December 31, 201
$ 77.€ $ 87.2
120.: 102.:

21.C 20.4

$ 219.1 $ 210.C
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Note 8 — Intangibles and Other Assets
The following table summarizes intangibles and p#ssets as of September 29, 2012:

September 29, 201,
Accumulated

(in millions of U.S. dollars Cost Amortization Net

Intangibles

Not subject to amortizatio

Rights $ 45.4 $ — $ 45.4

Subject to amortizatio

Customer relationshif $367.¢ $ 136.€ $231.(

Trademarks 28.€ 22.¢ 6.C

Information technolog' 65.2 49.7 15.t

Other 11.F 7.€ 3.7
473.% 217.C 256.2
518.¢ 217.( 301.¢

Other Assets

Financing cost $24.4 $ 10.z $ 14.1

Deposits 7.2 — 7.2

Other 1.t 0.2 1.2

33.1 10.€ 22.F
Total Intangibles and Other Assets $551.% $ 227 $324.1

Amortization expense of intangible and other assets $8.8 million and $26.6 million for the threedanine months ended September
2012, respectively, compared to $9.4 million and.32nillion for the comparable prior year periods.

The estimated amortization expense for intangibles the next five years is:

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Remainder of 201 $ 8.1
2013 30.€
2014 28.7
2015 26.7
2016 23.4
Thereaftel 138.7

$256.2

Our only intangible asset with an indefinite litdates to the 2001 acquisition of intellectual gy from Royal Crown Company, Inc.,
including the right to manufacture our concentratéth all related inventions, processes, technielsgechnical and manufacturing
information, know-how and the use of the Royal Qrdwand outside of North America and Mexico (théglRs”). The Rights are not subject
to amortization.
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Note 9 — Debt

Our total debt as of September 29, 2012 and DeceB1h011 was as follows:

(in millions of U.S. dollars

September 29, 201

December 31, 201

8.375% senior notes due in 2017 $ 215.( $ 215.(
8.125% senior notes due in 2C 375.( 375.(
GE obligation 10.1 12.4
Other capital lease 4.7 4.1
Other deb 1.2 15
Total debt 606.1 608.(
Less: Current det
GE obligation- current maturitie: 0.¢ 2.6
Other capital lease- current maturitie: 0.7 0.6
Other deb- current maturitie: 0.2 0.2
Total current debi 1.8 34
Long-term debt before discou 604.: 604.¢
Less discount on 8.375% not (2.9 (2.9
Total long-term debt $ 602.1 $ 602.1

! Our 8.375% senior notes were issued at a discdun#85% on November 13, 20(

Asset Based Lending Credit Facil

On March 31, 2008, we entered into a credit agre¢méh JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. as Agent thattedkan asset-based lending
credit facility (the “ABL facility”) to provide firancing for our North America, U.K. and Mexico refiog segments. In connection with the
Cliffstar Acquisition, we refinanced the ABL fadifion August 17, 2010 to, among other things, mevor the Cliffstar Acquisition, the
issuance of $375.0 million of 8.125% senior nokes aire due on September 1, 2018 (the “2018 Nog&sl)the application of net proceeds
therefrom, the underwritten public offering of 1803000 common shares at a price of $5.67 per stmat¢he application of net proceeds
therefrom and to increase the amount availablédorowings to $275.0 million. We drew down a pantiof the indebtedness under the ABL
facility in order to fund the Cliffstar AcquisitioWe incurred $5.4 million of financing fees in cattion with the refinancing of the ABL
facility.

On July 19, 2012, we amended the ABL facility tmamg other things, extend the maturity date toegifluly 19, 2017 or, if we have not
redeemed, repurchased or refinanced our 8.375%rseoties due 2017 (the “2017 Notes”) by May 1, 20d&y 15, 2017. We incurred $1.2
million of financing fees in connection with the andment of the ABL facility.

The financing fees incurred in connection with teftnancing of the ABL facility on August 17, 201&lpng with the financing fees
incurred in connection with the amendment of thd A&cility on July 19, 2012, are being amortizedhgsthe straight line method over the
duration of the amended ABL facility.

As of September 29, 2012, we had no outstandingptimgs under the ABL facility. The commitment feas 0.375% per annum of the
unused commitment, which, taking into account $hiildon of letters of credit, was $264.0 millios af September 29, 2012.

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

On August 17, 2010, we issued the 2018 Notes. 3$eer of the 2018 Notes is our wholiyned subsidiary Cott Beverages Inc., but |
Corporation and most of its U.S., Canadian and Wubsidiaries guarantee the 2018 Notes. The iriterethe 2018 Notes is payable semi-
annually on March # and Septembet 1 of each year.

We incurred $8.6 million of financing fees in cortien with the issuance of the 2018 Notes. Therfoirag fees are being amortized us
the effective interest method over an eight-yeaiogewhich represents the duration of the 2018eNot

16



Table of Contents

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

On November 13, 2009, we issued $215.0 million@f72Notes. The 2017 Notes were issued at a $3libmdiscount. The issuer of the
2017 Notes is Cott Beverages Inc., but Cott Corimmmaand most of its U.S., Canadian and U.K. subsies guarantee the 2017 Notes. The
interest on the 2017 Notes is payable semi-annoallylay 15" and November 15 of each year.

We incurred $5.1 million of financing fees in cootien with the 2017 Notes. The financing fees amd amortized using the effective
interest method over an eight-year period, whighesents the duration of the 2017 Notes.

Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies

We are subject to various claims and legal procesadivith respect to matters such as governmergalatons and other actions arising
out of the normal course of business. ManagemdigJas that the resolution of these matters witlimave a material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations, or célietv.

As of December 31, 2011, our accrued liabilitylfogation contingencies with a probable likelihooflloss was $2.9 million which was
related to a single contingency. During the fingaider of 2012 we settled this legal matter fomamount not materially different from our
accrued liability.

On August 17, 2010, we completed the Cliffstar Asiion. The first $15.0 million of the maximum $65.0 million of contingent
consideration was based upon the achievement etailes in certain expansion projects in 2010, viviere achieved in 2010. The remainde
of the contingent consideration was based on theaement of certain performance measures duriadishal year ended January 1, 2011.

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€ar of certain objections to the performanceamees used to calculate the
contingent consideration, and the seller assertddim for amounts in excess of the amounts accagetbntingent consideration at July 2,
2011. During the third and fourth quarters of 20@a{t made interim payments to the seller equ&Ptb.0 million and $8.6 million,
respectively. The payment of $21.0 million was afed $4.7 million refund due to Cott as a resulthef final determination of working capital,
and the payment of $8.6 million included $0.9 roifliin settlement of certain of the seller's objeas to the calculation of the contingent
consideration. The seller's remaining objectionthcalculation of the contingent consideratiom subject to an ongoing binding arbitration
process under the terms of the asset purchasenagmeeT he seller is seeking up to $12.1 milliomdditional contingent consideration. The
final resolution of these matters may result in ants payable to the seller that vary from the amofipost-closing payments previously made
to the seller of $34.3 million. We are currentlyabte to predict the ultimate outcome of this actitny changes in the fair value of contingent
consideration will be recorded in our Consolidefdtements of Operations.

We had $11.0 million in standby letters of creditstanding as of September 29, 2012 (October 11 2089.8 million).

Note 11 — Shares Held in Trust treated as Treasur$hares and Share Repurchase Program

In May 2008, an independent trustee acting undeaioeof our benefit plans purchased 2.3 millioroaf common shares to be used to
satisfy future liabilities under the Amended andfeed Performance Share Unit Plan (the “PSU Plamd)the Restated Executive Incentive
Share Purchase Plan (the “Restated EISPP"). Agpifeber 29, 2012, 0.7 million shares were hetdust, and accounted for as treasury
shares under applicable accounting rules. Treashayes are reported at cost.

Subsequent to the adoption of the 2010 Equity ltreefPlan on May 4, 2010, the Human Resources amdpénsation Committee of the
Board of Directors determined that certain of Goltng-term incentive plans were no longer neecedterminated the PSU Plan and the
Restated EISPP effective February 23, 2011. Nbvéurawards will be granted under such plans, asdutwards will be made under our 2010
Equity Incentive Plan.

On May 1, 2012, our Board of Directors authorizeel tepurchase of up to $35.0 million of our comrabares in the open market or
through privately negotiated transactions over -antihth period through either a 10b5-1 automatiditrg plan or at management’s discretion
in compliance with regulatory requirements, andegimarket, cost and other considerations. We ablaro predict the number of shares tha
will be repurchased under the share repurchasegm@r the aggregate dollar amount of the sharembly purchased. We may discontinue
purchases at any time, subject to compliance vgiieable regulatory requirements. We repurcha&f72 shares of common stock for
approximately $0.3 million during the second quaofe2012. No repurchases were made during the tihienths ended September 29, 2012.
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Note 12 — Hedging Transactions and Derivative Finaial Instruments

We are directly and indirectly affected by chanigefreign currency market conditions. These charigenarket conditions may
adversely impact our financial performance andreferred to as market risks. When deemed apprepiimanagement, we use derivatives a
a risk management tool to mitigate the potentigdant of foreign currency market risks.

We purchase forward contract derivative instrumeftsward contracts are agreements to buy or splbatity of a currency at a
predetermined future date and at a predeterminiecbrgprice. We do not enter into derivative fin@hamstruments for trading purposes.

As of September 29, 2012, all derivatives are edrait fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheetse line item accounts payable anc
accrued liabilities. The carrying values of theidatives reflect the impact of legally enforceabtgeements with the same counterparties.
These allow us to net settle positive and negaidsitions (assets and liabilities) arising fronfeli€nt transactions with the same counterparty

The accounting for gains and losses that resutt thanges in the fair values of derivative instrotaglepends on whether the derivat
have been designated and qualify as hedging institsyand the types of hedging relationships. Tlaagés in fair values of derivatives that
have been designated and qualify as cash flow Isesigerecorded in accumulated other comprehensbagrie (loss) (“AOCI”) and are
reclassified into the line item in the Consolidagtdtements of Operations in which the hedged i@msecorded in the same period the he
items affect earnings. Due to the high degree fetcéfeness between the hedging instruments andritierlying exposures being hedged,
fluctuations in the value of the derivative instemis are generally offset by changes in the fdiresor cash flows of the underlying expost
being hedged.

We formally designate and document, at inceptioe financial instrument as a hedge of a specifaedging exposure, the risk
management objective and the strategy for undergetkie hedge transaction. In addition, we formafigess both at the inception and at least
quarterly thereafter, whether the financial instemts used in hedging transactions are effectioéfsgtting changes in either the fair values or
cash flows of the related underlying exposures. le§fective portion of a financial instrument’satrige in fair value is immediately
recognized into earnings.

We estimate the fair values of our derivatives Hasequoted market prices or pricing models usingent market rates (refer to
Note 13). The notional amounts of the derivativeficial instruments do not necessarily representuats exchanged by the parties ¢
therefore, are not a direct measure of our expdsuittee financial risks described above. The anmarthanged are calculated by reference t
the notional amounts and by other terms of thevd#vies, such as interest rates, foreign curremcir@nge rates or other financial indices. We
do not view the fair values of our derivativessolation, but rather in relation to the fair valwesash flows of the underlying hedged
transactions. All of our derivatives are straightfard over-the-counter instruments with liquid metek

Credit Risk Associated with Derivatives

We have established strict counterparty creditgjiids and enter into transactions only with finahioistitutions of investment grade or
better. We mitigate pre-settlement risk by beingwpged to net settle for transactions with the sarounterparty.

Cash Flow Hedging Strategy

We use cash flow hedges to minimize the variabititgash flows of assets or liabilities or foreeastransactions caused by fluctuations
in foreign currency exchange rates. The chang#eifair values of derivatives designated as clash iedges are recorded in AOCI and are
reclassified into the line item in the Consolidagtdtements of Operations in which the hedged i@msecorded in the same period the he
items affect earnings. The changes in fair valdfdsedges that are determined to be ineffectivaransediately reclassified from AOCI into
earnings. We did not discontinue any cash flow heglgelationships during the nine months ended&aber 29, 2012. The maximum length
of time over which we hedge our exposure to futiaeh flows is typically one year.

We maintain a foreign currency cash flow hedginggpam to reduce the risk that our procurement gietsvwill be adversely affected by
changes in foreign currency exchange rates. We entteforward contracts to hedge certain portiohforecasted cash flows denominated in
foreign currencies. The total notional value ofidatives that have been designated and qualifp@wiforeign currency cash flow hedging
program as of September 29, 2012 was approxim@&gih8 million.

The fair value of the Company’s derivative instrunnigabilities was $0.3 million as of September 2012.
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The settlement of our derivative instruments reslih a charge to cost of sales of $0.3 million &@dt million for the three and nine
months ended September 29, 2012, respectively.

Note 13 — Fair Value Measurements

ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the exchangeghat would be received for an asset or patdatasfer a liability (an exit price) in
the principal or most advantageous market for gseor liability in an orderly transaction betwesarket participants at the measurement
date. Additionally, the inputs used to measurevalue are prioritized based on a three-level hi¢gna This hierarchy requires entities to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minirtfizeuse of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of inputs used to measure fairevate as follows:

* Level 1- Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities.

» Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted priiceluded in Level 1, such as quoted prices fmilar assets and liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or @massets and liabilities in markets that areawtive; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observablkahdata

» Level 3 —Unobservable inputs that are supportelitthy or no market activity and that are signéid to the fair value of the assets
or liabilities. This includes certain pricing moggtliscounted cash flow methodologies and simdehniques that use significant
unobservable input:

We have certain assets and liabilities that areired to be recorded at fair value on a recurriagi®in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
The following table summarizes those assets abditias measured at a fair value on a recurringi$as of September 29, 2012:

September 29, 201.

(in millions of U.S. dollars Level 1 Level 2 Level & Netting Adjustment Fair Value Measurement:

Liabilities
Derivatives $— $ 0.2 $— $ — $ 0.2
Total Liabilities $— $ 0.3 $— $ — $ 0.2

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reflected in the Consolid&atince Sheets for cash, receivables, payables;tem borrowings and long-term
debt approximate their respective fair values, pkas otherwise indicated. The carrying valuesestunated fair values of our significant
outstanding debt as of September 29, 2012 and Deredd, 2011 were as follows:

September 29, 201. December 31, 201.
(in millions of U.S. dollars Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
8.375% senior notes due in 2017 $ 215.( 235.7 $ 215.( 231.¢
8.125% senior notes due in 2Ct 375.( 416.7 375.( 404.k
Total $ 590.( $ 652.¢ $ 590.( $ 635.¢

The fair values are based on the trading levelshéhdffer prices observed by a market participemd are considered Level 1 inpt

Fair value of contingent consideration

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€far of certain objections to the performanceaswees used to calculate the
contingent consideration, and the seller assertgddim for amounts in excess of the amounts accagembntingent consideration at July 2,
2011. During the third and fourth quarters of 20C€&tt made interim payments to the seller equ&ktb.0 million and $8.6 million,
respectively. The payment of $21.0 million was ofed $4.7 million refund due to Cott as a resultraf final determination of working capital,
and the payment of $8.6 million included $0.9 roitlin settlement of certain of the seller’s objexs to the calculation of the contingent
consideration. The seller’'s remaining objectionth®calculation of the contingent consideratio: srbject to an ongoing binding arbitration
process under the terms of the asset purchasenagmeeTl he seller is seeking up to $12.1 milliomdditional contingent consideration. The
final resolution of these matters may result in ante payable to the seller that vary from the amo@ipost-closing payments previously made
to the seller of $34.3 million. We are currentlyabie to predict the ultimate outcome of this actidny changes in the fair value of contingent
consideration will be recorded in our Consolida&tdtements of Operations.
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Note 14 — Guarantor Subsidiaries

The 2017 Notes and 2018 Notes issued by our whmliged subsidiary, Cott Beverages, Inc., are unc¢iamdilly guaranteed on a senior
basis pursuant to guarantees by Cott Corporatidrecartain other wholly-owned subsidiaries (the “Guror Subsidiaries”). The guarantees of
the Guarantor Subsidiaries are subject to releabmited circumstances only upon the occurrenceesfain customary conditions.

We have not presented separate financial stateraadtseparate disclosures have not been providextoung subsidiary guarantors
because management has determined such informafim material to the holders of the above-memtibnotes.

The following supplemental financial informationtséorth on an unconsolidated basis, our Balaneeh Statements of Operations anc
Cash Flows for Cott Corporation, Cott Beverages, IBaarantor Subsidiaries and our other subsididtiee “Non-guarantor Subsidiaries”).
The supplemental financial information reflects owestments and those of Cott Beverages Inc.gin tespective subsidiaries using the eq
method of accounting.

In the third quarter of 2012, Cott revised the ficial statements of certain Non-guarantor Subsatiao properly reflect their

capitalization and subsequent investment in ceffaiarantor Subsidiaries resulting from a reorgaimmacompleted in connection with the
Cliffstar Acquisition. These Non-guarantor Subsiiig, which have no business operations and natipgrassets, hold, directly or indirectly,
the Company'’s investments in substantially allhef Guarantor Subsidiaries and therefore may beeddar purposes of the below disclosure
as in substance Guarantor Subsidiaries themséashas therefore included these Nprarantor Subsidiaries as Guarantor Subsidiaridse
supplemental financial information below and hagsed the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Septe28h2012 and December 31,
2011. While this revision does not change the assadilable to satisfy the guarantees made by tledhtor Subsidiaries, the inclusion of
these Non-guarantor Subsidiaries in the GuarantbsiSiary column for purposes of the below disctes@sults in the December 31, 2011
investment in subsidiaries and equity accountd\fum-guarantor Subsidiaries being reduced by $228l®n. There was no change to the
Consolidated Balance Sheets nor any changes toahsolidating Statements of Operations and CashidHor the periods presented.
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sale!

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative
expense:

Loss on disposal of property, plant &
equipmen

Operating income

Other (income) expense, r

Intercompany interest (income) expe!
net

Interest expense, n

Income before income tax expense
(benefit) and equity income

Income tax expense (bene!
Equity income
Net income

Less: Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest:

Net income attributed to Cott
Corporation

Comprehensive income attributed tc
Cott Corporation

For the Three Months Ended September 29, 201

Cott Beverage: Elimination
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Cott Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 52.¢ $ 220.z $ 271¢ $ 46.€ $ (7.5 $ 583
42.1 187.2 246.7 42.1 (7.5) 510.¢
10.t 33.C 24.¢ 4.8 — 73.2
8.1 18.c 15.1 2.3 — 43.¢
— 0.2 0.1 0.5 — 0.8
2.4 14t 9.7 2.C — 28.¢
(0.4) (1.2) 0.1 (0.1) — (1.5)

— (3.5 3.5 — — —
— 12.¢ 0.2 0.1 — 13.1
2.8 6.3 5.9 2.C — 17.C
0.¢ 1.2 (1.0 0.1 - 1.2

12.€ 1.5 6.5 — (20.6) —
$ 14.5 $ 6.6 $ 134 $ 1.6 $ (20 $ 15¢
— — — 1.3 — 1.2
$ 14.F $ 6.6 $ 134 $ 0.6 $ (206 $  14f
$ 27.2 $ 26.€ $  24c $ 9.6 $ (604 $ 27z
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sale!

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative
expense:

Loss on disposal of property, plant é
equipmen

Operating income

Other expense (income), r

Intercompany interest (income)
expense, ne

Interest expense, n

Income before income tax expense
(benefit) and equity income

Income tax expense (bene!
Equity income
Net income

Less: Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest:

Net income attributed to Cott
Corporation

Comprehensive income (loss
attributed to Cott Corporation

For the Nine Months Ended September 29, 201

Cott Beverage: Elimination
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Cott Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 157.€ $  669.¢ $ 799.1 $ 131.F $ (247 $ 1,733
126.5 564. 719. 118.5 (24.7) 1,504.!
30.€ 105.5 79.7 12.¢ — 228.¢
23.4 58.C 45.1 7.6 — 134.¢
— 0.€ 0.€ 0.t — 1.7
7.5 46.¢ 34.C 4.4 — 92.¢
0.1 (1.0 (0.9) (0.5) — (2.2)

— (8.2) 8.2 — — —
0.2 39.¢ 0.5 0.1 — 40.¢
7.2 16.2 26.1 4.8 — 54.£
4.1 1.8 (0.9) - - 5.

42.4 3.8 18.% — (64.5) —
$ 45.5 $ 18.2 $ 44t $ 4.8 $ (645 $  48¢
— — — 3.4 — 3.4
$ 45.5 $ 18.% $ 44t $ 1.4 $ (645 $ 45
$ 58.€ $ 44.2 $ (380 $ 55.2 $ (614 $  58¢
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sale!

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative
expense:

Loss on disposal of property, plant &
equipmen

Operating income

Other expense (income), r

Intercompany interest (income) expel
net

Interest expense, n

Income (loss) before income tax
expense (benefit) and equity
income

Income tax expense (bene!
Equity income

Net income

Less: Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest:

Net income (loss) attributed to Cotl
Corporation

Comprehensive income (loss
attributed to Cott Corporation

For the Three Months Ended October 1, 201

Cott Beverage: Elimination
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Cott Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 55.7 $ 2415 $ 277.0 $ 45.¢ $ (9.9 $ 611:
43.¢ 217.( 251. 40.¢ (9.9 543.
11.¢ 247 26.4 4.7 — 67.€
7.C 15.c 12.7 3.1 — 38.1
— 04 0.1 — — 0.t
4.8 9.0 13.€ 1.€ — 29.C
2 (1.0 0.5 0.€ — K

— (2.2) 2.1 — — —
0.1 13.7 0.t 0.1 — 14.£
3.5 (1.6) 10.E 0. — 13.2
1.C (2.9 (2.9) - - (4.0)

13.7 1.2 1. — (16.€) —
$ 16.2 $ 1.8 $ 15z $ 0.¢ $ (169 $ 17
— — — 1.1 — 1.1
$ 16.2 $ 1.8 $ 15 $ (02 $ (169 $ 16
$ 1.1 $ (129 $ 78 $ (126 $ 17.€ $ 1.1
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sale!

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expel

Loss on disposal of property, plant &
equipmen

Operating income

Other expense (income), r
Intercompany interest (income) expense
Interest expense, n

Income (loss) before income tax expen:
(benefit) and equity income (loss)

Income tax expense (bene!
Equity income (loss
Net income (loss

Less: Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest:

Net income (loss) attributed to Coti
Corporation

Comprehensive income (loss) attributed
to Cott Corporation

For the Nine Months Ended October 1, 201

Cott Beverage: Elimination
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Cott Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 158« $ 711 $ 8186 $ 125¢ $ (285 $ 1,785
126.£ 625.¢ 724.7 111.¢ (28.5) 1,560.:
32.C 85.2 93.¢ 14.1 — 225.;
24.¢ 55.¢ 37.¢ 9.6 — 128.:

— 04 0.1 — — 0.t

7.2 29.C 56.C 4.2 — 96.4

1.2 (0.9 0.€ 0.5 — 2.1

(3.5 (1.9 5.4 — — —

0.2 41.5 1.€ 0.2 — 43.4

9.1 (10.2) 48.4 3.E — 50.¢
2.1 (1.0 (3.0 0.2 - (1.7)

42.5 3.4 (5.9 — (40.6) —

$ 49.t $ (5.7 $ 46.1 $ Sl $ (40.¢ $ 52.¢
— — — 3.1 — 3.1

$ 495 % 57 $ 461 3 02 $ (40.6 $ 49
$ 45.4 $ (2.7 $ 142 $ 21.2 $ (160.9 $ 45.4
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Consolidating Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited

ASSETS
Current asset:

Cash & cash equivalen
Accounts receivable, net of allowar
Income taxes recoverak

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as
Total current assets

Property, plant & equipmel

Goodwill

Intangibles and other assi
Deferred income taxe
Other tax receivabl

Due from affiliates
Investments in subsidiari

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities

Current maturities of lor-term debt
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities

Due to affiliates
Total liabilities

Equity

Capital stock, no pz

Treasury stocl

Additional paic-in-capital
Retained earnings (defic
Accumulated other comprehensive

(loss) income

Total Cott Corporation equity
Non-controlling interest:

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

As of September 29, 201

Elimination
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Cott Corporation Cott Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 40.5 $ 8.1 $ 33:& $ 6.2 $ — $ 88.1
18.7 114.t 179.¢ 17.C (77.7) 252.1

— 2.6 — — — 2.€

23.1 75.1 113.( 7.9 — 219.1

1.t 14.¢ 8.5 0.1 — 25.C

83.¢ 215.¢ 334.¢ 31.2 (77.7) 587.:

50.7 184.¢ 243 9.3 — 488.1

27.C 4.t 98.4 — — 130.¢

1.1 104.( 203.t 15.5 — 324.]

2.t — — 0.3 — 2.8

0.4 — 0.€ — — 1.C

35.5 176.( 78.1 41.¢ (331.9 —

491.5 392.5 832.% — (1,716.9) —

$ 693.2 $ 1,077 $ 1,790.¢ $ 98.1 $(2,125.9) $ 1,534.(
$ — $ 1.2 $ 0.2 $ 0.4 $ — $ 1.&
31.7 117.5 163.2 12.4 (77.7) 247.]

31.7 118.7 163.< 12.¢ (77.7) 248.¢

.2 598.¢ 1.t 1.5 — 602.1

— 30.5 6.4 0.8 — 37.5

0.2 3.€ 11.€ — — 15.¢

43.2 76.7 178.7 32.€ (331.9 —

75.4 828.1 361.€ 47.€ (409.)) 903.¢
395.7 574.C 1,750.¢ 83.t (2,408.9) 395.7
(2.2 — — — — (2.1)
46.1 — — — — 46.1
189.t (341.9) (332.9 (44.4) 718.7 189.f
(11.4) 16.7 10.7 (1.2) (26.2) (11.9)
617.¢ 249.¢ 1,429.( 37.¢ (1,716.9) 617.¢
— — — 12.2 — 12.2
617.¢ 249. 1,429.( 50.2 (1,716.9) 630.1
$ 693.2 $ 1,077t $ 1,790.¢ $ 98.1 $(2,125.9) $ 1,534.(
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Consolidating Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

ASSETS

Current asset:

Cash & cash equivalen

Accounts receivable, net of allowar
Income taxes recoverak
Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as

Total current assets

Property, plant & equipmel
Goodwill

Intangibles and other assi
Deferred income taxe
Other tax receivabl

Due from affiliates
Investments in subsidiari

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Current maturities of lor-term debt

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt
Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Equity

Capital stock, no pe

Treasury stocl

Additional paic-in-capital

Retained earnings (defic

Accumulated other comprehensive
(loss) income

Total Cott Corporation equity

Non-controlling interest:

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

As of December 31, 201

Elimination
Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Cott Corporation Cott Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 13.7 $ 20.7 $ 58.C $ 7.6 $ — $ 100.¢
22.4 97.2 136.1 14.¢ (59.7) 210.¢

— 8.8 0.8 0.3 — 9.¢

18.1 60.z 124.% 7.5 — 210.(

1.8 13.¢ 3.€ 0.1 — 19.2

56.C 200.7 323.¢ 30.1 (59.7) 550.¢

48.C 179.: 245.1 9.8 — 482.;

26.€ 4.t 98.2 — — 129.¢

0.6 105.: 216.5 18.4 — 341.1

4.1 — — — — 4.1

0.t — 0.5 — — 1.C

30.7 166.£ 79.1 41.¢ (317.%) —

459.¢ 365.5 572.% — (1,397.9) —

$ 626.5 $ 1,021." $ 15358 $ 100.2 $(1,775.0 $ 1,508.¢
$ — $ 2.8 $ 0.1 $ 0.4 $ — $ 3.4
27.1 117.] 181.2 15.4 (59.7) 281.]

27.1 120.( 181.: 15.€ (59.7) 284.F

0.2 599.( 1.2 1.7 — 602.1

— 26.¢ 6.8 0.5 — 34.1

0.2 3.t 16.5 — — 20.C

43.2 77.€ 168.¢ 27.8 (317.9) —

70.7 827.1 374.5 45.¢ (377.9 940.7
395.¢ 569.: 1,396.¢ 82.¢ (2,048.9) 395.¢
(2.2 — — — — (2.1)
42.¢€ — — — — 42.¢
144.1 (365.5) (329.0 (42.1) 736.¢€ 144.1
(24.7) (9.2) 93.5 1.3 (85.6) (24.7)
555.¢ 194.¢ 1,161.( 42.C (1,397.9 555.¢
— — — 12.4 — 12.4
555.¢ 194.¢ 1,161.( 54.2 (1,397.6 568.%
$ 626.5 $ 1,021." $ 1,535.! $ 100.2 $(1,775.0) $ 1,508.¢
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

For the Three Months Ended September 29, 201
Guarantor  Non-Guarantor
Cott Corporation Cott Beverages Inc Subsidiaries _ Subsidiaries  Elimination Entries  Consolidatec

Operating Activities

Net income $ 145 $ 6.€ $ 134 $ 1¢ $ (20.6) $ 15.¢
Depreciation & amortizatio 1.€ 9.4 12.1 1.€ — 24
Amortization of financing fee 0.1 0.€ 0.1 — — 0.8
Shar-based compensation expel 0.2 0.¢ 0.3 (0.7) — 1.3
Increase (decrease) in deferred income t 0.€ 1.2 1.3 0.1 — 0.€
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm — 0.2 0.1 0.t — 0.8
Equity loss, net of distributior (12.6) (1.5 (6.5) — 20.€ —
Intercompany transactiol 2.1 2.1 — — (4.2 —
Other nor-cash item: (0.9) (2.0 — — — (1.9
Net change in operating assets and liabilities

of acquisition 16.4 0.6 (3.9 (2.7) 4.2 15.4
Net cash provided by operating activit 22.t 19.4 14.¢ 3 — 58.C

Investing Activities

Acquisition — 4.7 — — — 4.7
Additions to property, plant & equipme (1.2 (9.0 (2.7 (1.3 — (13.2)
Additions to intangibles and other ass (0.5) (1.7 0.€ — — (1.0
Proceeds from sale of property, plant &

equipmen — — — & — 1.3
Proceeds from insurance recovel — 1.7 — — — 1.7
Advances to affiliate — — — (1.6 1.€ —
Net cash used in investing activiti (1.9 (13.7) (1.7) (1.6) 1.€ (15.€

Financing Activities

Payments of lor-term debi 0.1 (0.2 — (0.7 — (0.2)
Advances from affiliate 1.€ — — — (1.6 —
Distributions to no-controlling interest: — — — (1.9 — (1.9
Financing fee: — (1.2 — — — (1.2)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

activities 1.7 (1.9 — (2.0 (1.6) (3.3
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 1.2 — 0.€ 0.2 — 2.2
Net increase (decrease) in cash & ca:

equivalents 23.7 4.¢ 14.t (2.7) — 41.C
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of perio 16.¢ 3.2 18.¢ o8 — 47.1
Cash & cash equivalents, end of perio $ 405 $ 81% 33: % 6.2 $ —  $ 88.1
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

For the Nine Months Ended September 29, 201

Cott Corporation

Guarantor

Cott Beverages Inc  Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries  Elimination Entries

Consolidatec

Operating Activities

Net income $ 455 % 182 $ 44t $ 48 $ (64.5) $  48.¢
Depreciation & amortizatio 4.7 27.1 36.C 4.4 — 72.2
Amortization of financing fee 0.2 2.t 0.2 — — 2.6
Shar-based compensation expel 1.C 1.7 0.8 — — S
Increase (decrease) in deferred income t 1.7 3.7 (0.7) (0.7) — 4.€
Gain on bargain purcha — — (0.9 — — (0.9
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm — 0.€ 0.€ 0.t — 1.7
Equity loss, net of distributior (42.4 (3.8 (18.9) — 64.5 —
Intercompany transactiol 18.c 3.t — — (21.9) —
Other nor-cash item: — (0.8 — — — (0.9
Net change in operating assets and liabilities

of acquisition (2.9 (20.7 (76.2) (2.2 21.¢ (79.7)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities 26.7 32.7 (13.9) i3 — 53.C

Investing Activities

Acquisition — 4.7 (5.0 — — (9.7
Additions to property, plant & equipme (5.9 (33.9 (9.9 (1.6) — (50.6)
Additions to intangibles and other ass (0.5 4.7 0.t — — (4.7)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant &

equipmen — — 1.C .3 — 2.3
Proceeds from insurance recovel — 1.7 — — — 1.7
Advances to affiliate — — — (5.7) 5.1 —
Net cash used in investing activiti (5.9 (41.5 (13.9) (5.4 5.1 (61.0

Financing Activities

Payments of lor-term debi 0.1 (2.6 — (0.3 — (2.9
Borrowings under ABL — 24.F — — — 24.k
Payments under AB — (24.5) — — — (24.5)
Advances from affiliate 5.1 — — — (5.7 —
Distributions to no-controlling interest: — — — 3.9 — (3.3
Common share repurcha (0.9 — — — — 0.3
Financing fee: — (1.2 — — — (1.2
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

activities 4.€ (3.9 — (3.6) (5.2 (7.6
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 1.1 — 14 o8 — 2.8
Net increase (decrease) in cash & ca:

equivalents 26.¢ (12.6) (25.6) (1.9 — (12.9)
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of perio 13.7 20.7 58.¢ 7.€ — 100.¢
Cash & cash equivalents, end of period $ 405 $ 81 % 33: % 6.2 $ —  $ 88.1
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

For the Three Months Ended October 1, 201
Guarantor  Non-Guarantor
Cott Corporation Cott Beverages Inc Subsidiaries _ Subsidiaries  Elimination Entries  Consolidatec

Operating Activities

Net income $ 16.2 $ 1€ $ 152 % 0c $ (16.6) $ 17.2
Depreciation & amortizatio i1z 8.8 12.1 1.€ — 24.C
Amortization of financing fee 0.1 0.¢ 0.1 — — 11
Shar-based compensation expel — (1.6 — — — (2.6
Increase (decrease) in deferred income t 0.t 1.7 (2.8 (0.2 — (4.2
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm — 0.4 0.1 — — 0.t
Contract termination paymer (0.) (2.3 — — — (3.2
Equity loss, net of distributior (14.0 1.3 (1.9 — 16.7 —
Intercompany transactiol 8.¢ 5.1 — — (14.0 —
Other nor-cash item: — (0.2 — — — (0.2)
Net change in operating assets and liabilities

of acquisition (12.0 206.¢ (174.9 (3.9 14.1 30.C
Net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities 0.4 216.€ (151.6) (1.5) — 63.¢
Investing Activities
Acquisition — (25.7) — — — (25.7)
Additions to property, plant & equipme (1.9 (5.7 (1.9 — — (8.2
Additions to intangibles and other ass — (0.9 (0.9 (0.2 — (1.9
Proceeds from sale of property, plant &

equipmen — 0.1 — — — 0.1
Other investing activitie — (0.2 — — — (0.2)
Advances to affiliate — — 162.t 5.1 (167.6) —
Net cash (used in) provided by investing

activities (1.9 (32.3) 161.C 5.C (167.6) (35.9)
Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term debi — (1.6 — (0.2 — (2.9
Borrowings under ABL — 80.7 — — — 80.7
Payments under AB — (200.%) — — — (100.7)
Advances from affiliate (5.7 (162.5 — — 167.€ —
Distributions to no-controlling interest: — — — (1.7) (2.7
Exercise of option — 0.2 — — — 0.2
Net cash used in financing activiti (5.0 (183.9 — (1.9 167.€ (23.9)
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (0.9) — (0.9 (0.9 — (1.2
Net (decrease) increase in cash & ca:

equivalents (6.4 0.4 9.C 1.2 — 4.2
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of perio 8.7 1.5 8.4 5.4 — 24.C
Cash & cash equivalents, end of perio $ 232 % 1¢$ 172 % 6.€ $ — $ 28z
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

For the Nine Months Ended October 1, 201
Guarantor  Non-Guarantor
Cott Corporation Cott Beverages Inc Subsidiaries _ Subsidiaries  Elimination Entries  Consolidatec

Operating Activities

Net income (loss $ 495 $ B5.77% 461 % 33 % (4060 $  52.¢€
Depreciation & amortizatio 4.t 26.1 36.2 4.€ — 71.2
Amortization of financing fee 0.2 2.5 0.2 — — 2.6
Shar-based compensation expel 1.C 0.€ 0.€ — — 2.2
Increase (decrease) in deferred income t 1.4 (0.5 (3.0 (0.2 — (2.3
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm — 0.4 0.1 — — 0.t
Contract termination paymer (0.) (2.3 — — — (3.2
Equity (loss) income, net of distributio (42.9) (3.5 5.€ — 40.5 —
Intercompany transactiol 15.¢ 7.8 — — (23.6) —
Other nor-cash item: — 1.7 — — — 1.7
Net change in operating assets and liabilities

of acquisition (28.8) 185.( (242.9) (3.9 23.7 (66.9)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities — 212.1 (156.7) 4.2 — 59.€
Investing Activities
Acquisition — (25.7) — — — (25.7)
Additions to property, plant & equipme (3.5 (19.€ (8.0 — — (31.9
Additions to intangibles and other ass 14 (3.5 (0.5 (2.3 — (3.9
Proceeds from sale of property, plant &

equipmen — 0.1 — — — 0.1
Other investing activitie — (1.8) — — — (2.9
Advances to affiliate — — 156.] 3.2 (159.9 —
Net cash (used in) provided by investing

activities (2.) (50.€) 147.¢ 1.6 (159.9) (62.79)
Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term debi — (4.8 — (0.9 — (5.9
Borrowings under ABL — 224.1 — — — 224.]
Payments under AB — (231.9 — — — (231.9)
Advances from affiliate (3.2 (156.7) — — 159.: —
Distributions to no-controlling interest: — — — (4.2 — (4.2
Exercise of option — 0.3 — — — 0.2
Financing fee: — (0.7) — — — (0.7)
Net cash used in financing activiti (3.2 (168.5 — (4.6) 159.: (17.0
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (0.2) — 0.t (0.2 — 0.1
Net (decrease) increase in cash & ca

equivalents (5.5) (7.2) (8.6) 1.2 — (20.0)
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of perio 7.€ 9.1 26.C 5.3 — 48.2
Cash & cash equivalents, end of period $ 223 3 1¢$ 174 % 6.6 $ — 28.2

Note 15 — Subsequent Event

On October 31, 2012, the Board of Directors dedaréividend of CAD $0.06 per share on common sha@yable in cash on
December 20, 2012 to shareowners of record atitise of business on December 4, 2012.
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Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firer@ondition and Results of Operations is intenttetlrther the reader’'s
understanding of the consolidated financial condifind results of operations of our Company. lushbe read in conjunction with the
financial statements included in this quarterlyortn Form 10-Q and our annual report on Form 1fe+#kthe year ended December 31, 2011
(the “2011 Annual Report”). These historical finmtstatements may not be indicative of our futpeeformance. This discussion contains a
number of forward-looking statements, all of whaole based on our current expectations and couddiféeted by the uncertainties and risks
referred to under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A in @011 Annual Report.

Overview

We are one of the world’s largest producers of beyes on behalf of retailers, brand owners andiloigors. Our objective of creating
sustainable long-term growth in revenue and proiityt is predicated on working closely with ourstamers to provide proven profitable
products. As a “fast follower” of innovative prodscour goal is to identify which new products aueceeding in the marketplace and develog
similar private label, high quality products atettbr value. This objective is increasingly relevarmore difficult economic times.

The beverage market is subject to some seasonativas. Our beverage sales are generally higheéngithe warmer months and also
can be influenced by the timing of holidays and therfluctuations. The purchases of our raw mdteead related accounts payable fluctuate
based upon the demand for our products as welllearhing of the fruit growing season. The seadgnaf our sales volume combined with
fruit growing season causes our working capitatisde fluctuate throughout the year, with inventieyels increasing in the first half of the
year in order to meet the higher summer demandevitiit peaks during the last quarter of the ywhen purchases are made after the groy
season. In addition, our accounts receivable bakdecline in the fall as customers pay their highenaverage outstanding balances fromnr
summer deliveries.

We typically operate at low margins, and therefetatively small changes in cost structures carenaly impact our results.

Ingredient and packaging costs represent a signifiportion of our cost of sales. These costsagst to global and regional
commodity price trends. Our largest commoditiesadweninum for cans and ends, resin for polyethykenephthalate bottles, preforms and
caps, fruit and fruit concentrates and corn fohHigictose corn syrup (“HFCS”). We attempt to mamagr exposure to fluctuations in
ingredient and packaging costs of our productaipiémenting price increases as needed and enfatmixed price commitments for a
portion of our ingredient and packaging requireraeWe have entered into fixed price commitmentsHerremainder of 2012 for all of our
HFCS requirements and a majority of our forecaatathinum and fruit requirements. We also have edtanto fixed price commitments for
over half of our aluminum, all of our HFCS requiremts and a portion of our fruit requirements fot 20Finally, we have entered into fixed
price commitments for a small portion of our alumimfor 2014.

On August 17, 2010, we completed the acquisitiosudiistantially all of the assets and liabilitieCtiffstar Corporation (“Cliffstar”) and
its affiliated companies for approximately $503.0ion in cash, $14.0 million in deferred considioa to be paid over three years, of which
$4.7 million was paid in each of the third quad&€R011 and the third quarter of 2012, and contmgensideration of up to $55.0 million (the
“Cliffstar Acquisition”). The first $15.0 million bthe contingent consideration was based uponc¢heeement of milestones in certain
expansion projects in 2010, which were achieve2Dit0. The remainder of the contingent consideratiag based on the achievement of
certain performance measures during the fiscal geded January 1, 2011. The seller of Cliffstaifieot us of certain objections to the
performance measures used to calculate the conticgesideration, and the seller asserted a clairarhounts in excess of the amounts
accrued as contingent consideration at July 2, 2Dliting the third and fourth quarters of 2011, tGoéade interim payments to the seller equa
to $21.0 million and $8.6 million, respectively. 8 payment of $21.0 million was net of a $4.7 milli@fund due to Cott as a result of the final
determination of working capital, and the paymdr&6 million included $0.9 million in settlemeat certain of the seller’s objections to the
calculation of the contingent consideration. THéess remaining objections to the calculation b tcontingent consideration are subject to ar
ongoing binding arbitration process under the teofrthe asset purchase agreement. The sellerksgeap to $12.1 million in additional
contingent consideration. The final resolutiontedge matters may result in amounts payable todller shat vary from the amount of post-
closing payments previously made to the seller3df.% million. We are currently unable to predic thitimate outcome of this action. Any
changes in the fair value of contingent consideratill be recorded in our Consolidated Statemehperations.
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We supply Walmart and its affiliated companies,@emahnual non-exclusive supply agreements, withrgety of products in the United
States, Canada, United Kingdom and Mexico, inclgdiarbonated soft drinks (“CSDs"), clear, still asphrkling flavored waters, juice, juice-
based products, bottled water, energy drinks aadyr¢o-drink teas. During the first nine month26f.2, we supplied Walmart with all of its
private label CSDs in the United States. If Walnvegte to utilize other suppliers to fulfill a panti or all of its requirements for such products,
our operating results could be materially adveraffgcted. Sales to Walmart for the nine monthsdrBleptember 29, 2012 and October 1,
2011 accounted for 31.3% and 31.9% of total reveraspectively.

Summary financial results

Our net income for the three months ended Septe@he&t012 (the “third quarter”) and the nine morghged September 29, 2012 (“first
nine months of 2012 or “year to date”) was $14i8liom or $0.15 per diluted share and $45.5 millmn$0.48 per diluted share, respectively,
compared with net income of $16.2 million or $0gEf diluted share and $49.5 million or $0.52 pértdd share for the three and nine month:s
ended October 1, 2011, respectively.

The following items of significance impacted ouoaficial results for the third quarter and first gimonths of 2012:

* our revenue decreased 2.9% year to date from tinpa@ble prior year period due primarily to a deelin North America volume
resulting from our exit from certain low margin inesss and a product mix shift into juice drinks apdrts drinks from 100% shelf-
stable juice. Absent foreign exchange impact, reeatecreased 1.9% year to date from the compapableyear period

* our gross profit as a percentage of revenue inetes12.5% and 13.2% for the third quarter and jeedate, respectively,
compared to 11.1% and 12.6%, respectively, fronctmparable prior year periods due primarily tadéased pricing on products
and our exit from lower margin busine

» our filled beverage 8-ounce equivalents (“beverzage volume”) decreased 8.7% year to date due plyrtathe exit of certain
low margin business and the general decline ilNbieh American CSD and juice categori

» our selling, general and administrative (“SG&A&jpenses for the first nine months of 2012 incréasé&134.4 million from $128
million in the comparable prior year period duenmarily to an increase in certain employee-relatestcompared to a lowering of
the annual incentive and lc-term incentive accruals in the prior ye

» our loss on disposal of property, plant and equiptigear to date was the result of the sale of #itiam each of Mexico and the
U.K. and normal operational disposs

» our other income was $2.2 million year to date essalt of insurance recoveries in excess of the locurred on a U.S. facility in
the amount of $1.3 million and recording a bargairchase of $0.9 million in the U.K. compared tbhestexpense of $2.1 million
the comparable prior year period, which was thaltes $1.2 million in foreign exchange effects &9 million in adjustments to
the contingent consideration associated with thfés@r Acquisition;

* our interest expense decreased by $2.8 million tgedate as a result of decreased debt balancagsHielghout the perio

* our income tax expense was $5.5 million year te datmpared to a $1.7 million benefit in the compkearior year period, due
primarily to the recording of $4.3 million of all@mces against deferred tax assets in the U.Sathaincertain to be realized and
the lapping of a favorable tax settlement in themyear; anc

e our earnings before interest expense, taxes, dapijgcand amortization adjusted for inventory stgp(step-down) and integration
costs related to the Cliffstar Acquisition (“Adjast EBITDA”) increased 2.8% to $170.4 million yeardate from $165.8 million in
the comparable prior year peric
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The following items of significance impacted ouoaficial results for the third quarter and first gimonths of 2011:

» the Cliffstar Acquisition contributed $401.7 miltido revenue and $26.8 million to operating incamea year to date bas

» our gross profit as a percentage of revenue wd®d and 12.6% for the third quarter and year to,datpectively, compared to
13.8% and 15.5%, respectively, from the comparphte year period

* ourrevenue increased 40.1% year to date fromdhw®arable prior year period. Absent foreign excleaingpact, revenue increased
38.0% year to date from the comparable prior yeaiogd, due primarily to the Cliffstar Acquisitio

» our beverage case volume increased 20.5% yeatdadda primarily to the Cliffstar Acquisition. Exling the impact of the
Cliffstar Acquisition, our year to date beveragsegolume increased 5.4% on a consolidated badid.&f6 in North Americe

» our SG&A expenses for the first nine months of 20itteased to $128.3 million from $114.2 milliontire comparable prior year
period, due primarily to the Cliffstar Acquisitioaffset in part by a reduction to certain employekated costs, information
technology costs and professional fe

* ourinterest expense increased to $43.4 milliom §edate from $22.6 million in the comparable pyear period due primarily to
the issuance in the prior year period of $375.0ionilof senior notes that are due on Septembe®18 2the*2018 Note”);

» the decrease in other expense of $1.5 million jedate was due primarily to the write-off of fircimg fees in the comparable prior
year period; an

» our income tax benefit of $1.7 million comparedrtcome tax expense of $13.9 million in the compbraior year period, due
primarily to lower pretax income in the United @sand Canada, the reorganization of our legatyesitucture and refinancing of
intercompany deb

Non-GAAP Measures

In this report, we supplement our reporting of ficial measures determined in accordance with leBeglly accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) by utilizing certain non-GAAHRrancial measures. We exclude the impact of forekghange from GAAP revenues to
separate the impact of currency exchange rate elsangm Cott's results of operations. Cott exclutiese items to better understand trends il
the business.

We also utilize earnings before interest expersse&d, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”), whiis GAAP earnings before
interest expense, provision for income taxes, déatien and amortization. We consider EBITDA toareindicator of operating performance.
We also use EBITDA, as do analysts, lenders, imvesind others, because it excludes certain ithaiscan vary widely across different
industries or among companies within the same imngushese differences can result in considerabhébility in the relative costs of
productive assets and the depreciation and ambotizeaxpense among companies. We also utilize Ae§UEBITDA as an indicator of
operating performance. Our Adjusted EBITDA exclugaschase accounting adjustments, integration esggemestructuring and asset
impairments. Adjusted EBITDA excludes these itemfatilitate period-over-period comparisons of ongoing core operations before
material charges.

Because Cott uses these adjusted financial réautie management of its business and to understagelrlying business performance,
management believes this supplemental informasiarséful to investors for their independent evadmaand understanding of Cott’'s business
performance and the performance of its manageréetnon-GAAP financial measures described abov@aaddition to, and not meant to be
considered superior to, or a substitute for, Cdittancial statements prepared in accordance WA In addition, the non-GAAP financial
measures included in this report reflect managemardgment of particular items, and may be difféareom, and therefore may not be
comparable to, similarly titled measures reportgdther companies.
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The following table summarizes our Consolidatedestents of Operations as a percentage of revemulddhree and nine months
ended September 29, 2012 and October 1, 2011 ctasyg:

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

September 29, 201 QOctober 1, 2011 September 29, 201. October 1, 2011
(in millions of U.S. dollars, except percentag $ % $ % $ % $ %
Revenue, net 583.6 100.C 611.% 100.C 1,733« 100.C 1,785.. 100.(
Cost of sale: 510.€ 87.E 543.i 88.¢ 1,504. 86.€ 1,560.: 87.£
Gross profit 73.2 12.t 67.€ 11.1 228.¢ 13.2 225.2 12.€
Selling, general and administrative exper 43.¢ 7.5 38.1 6.2 134.¢ 7.€ 128.: 7.2
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm 0.8 0.1 0.t 0.1 1.7 0.1 0.t 0.C
Operating incom: 28.€ 4.9 29.C 4.€ 92.¢ B2 96.4 5.4
Other (income) expense, r (1.5 (0.3 1.2 0.2 (2.2 (0. 2.1 0.1
Interest expense, n 13.1 2.2 14.£ 2.4 40.€ 2.2 43.4 2.4
Income before income tax 17.C 3.C 13.: 2.2 54.4 3.1 50.¢ 2.6
Income tax expense (bene! 1.2 0.2 4.0 (0.9 B3 0.3 (L7 (0.3)
Net income 15.¢ 2.8 17.2 2.6 48.¢ 2.8 52.€ 3.C
Less: Net income attributable to r-controlling interest: 1.3 0.2 1.1 0.2 3.4 0.2 3.1 0.2
Net income attributed to Cott Corporati 14.5 2.€ 16.2 2.7 45.F 2.€ 49.5 2.E
Depreciation & amortizatio 24,7 4.2 24.C 3.¢ 72.2 4.2 71.4 4.C

The following table summarizes our revenue and apeg income (loss) by reporting segment for tireg¢hand nine months ended
September 29, 2012 and October 1, 2011, respectivel

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars September 29, 201 October 1, 201: September 29, 201 October 1, 201.
Revenus

North America $ 439.2 $ 468.1 $ 1,323.: $ 1,388.:
United Kingdom 125.t 124.t 356.2 336.¢
Mexico 9.7 12.7 29.C 40.c
RCI 9.3 6.C 25.1 20.1
Total $ 583.¢ $ 611.: $ 1,733.¢ $ 1,785
Operating income (los:

North America $ 18.¢ $ 19.€ $ 67.4 $ 70.€
United Kingdom 7.€ 8.2 21.t 22
Mexico (2.0 (0.9 (3.2 (3.0
RCI 2. 1.8 7.1 6.1
Total $ 28.€ $ 29.C $ 92.¢ $ 96.4

Revenues are attributed to reporting segments lmaséte location of the customer.
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The following table summarizes our beverage casenwe by reporting segment for the three and ninathmended September 29, 2012

and October 1, 2011, respectively:

(in millions of physical case

Volume- 8 oz equivalent cased otal

Beverage (including concentrat

North America
United Kingdom
Mexico

RCI

Total

Volume- 8 oz equivalent caseg-illed

Beverage
North America

United Kingdom
Mexico
RCI

Total

For the Three Months Ended

For the Nine Months Ended

September 29, 201 October 1, 201

190.] 207.k
53.¢ 55.¢
6.4 8.7
7.5 60.2
327.¢ 332.(
167.% 188.1
50.5 53.C
6.4 8.7
0.2 —
224.% 249.¢

September 29, 201

October 1, 201.

573.¢ 620.:
154.t 157.:
19.C 28.¢
220.2 204.:
967.€ 1,010.¢
505.¢ 557.:
143.1 145.¢
19.C 28.¢
0.2 —
668.( 732.C

The following tables summarize revenue and volumproduct for the three and nine months ended &dme 29, 2012 and October 1,

2011, respectively:

(in millions of U.S. dollars
Revenu

Carbonated soft drink
Juice

Concentratt

All other products

Total

(in_ millions of physical case

For the Three Months Ended September 29, 2012

Volume- 8 0z equivalent casedS otal Beverage (including

concentrate’
Carbonated soft drink
Juice
Concentratt
All other products

Total

(in millions of U.S. dollars
Revenu

Carbonated soft drink
Juice

Concentratt

All other products

Total

North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
$ 182.: $ 43.1 $ 51 $ 03 $ 230.¢
133.5 3.7 0.2 04 138.1
3.3 0.5 — 8.5 12.¢
120.( 78.2 4.2 0.1 202.€
$ 439.C $ 125.5 $ 97 $ 93 $ 583.¢
For the Three Months Ended September 29, 2012
North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
77.C 227 3.7 0.1 103.t
30.1 1.C 0.4 0.2 31.7
22.¢ 34 — 77.2 103.<
60.2 26.€ 2.3 — 89.5
190.1 53.¢ 6.4 77.5 327.¢
For the Nine Months Ended September 29, 2012
North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
$ 533.c $ 121.¢ $16. $ 0.2 $ 671.¢
406.¢ 10.t 0.7 1.1 419.2
9.6 1.& — 23.€ 35.C
373.% 222.1 11.€ 0.1 607.4
$ 1,323 $ 356.2 $29.C $25.1 $1,733.
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For the Nine Months Ended September 29, 2012

(in millions of physical case North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total

Volume- 8 0z equivalent cas- Total Beverage (including concentra

Carbonated soft drink 235.2 63.€ 11.€ 0.1 310.7

Juice 92.€ 2.6 0.7 0.2 96.2

Concentratt 68.8 11.4 — 219.¢ 299.¢

All other products 177.¢ 76.5 6.7 — 261.(

Total 573.¢ 154k 19.C 220.z 967.¢
For the Three Months Ended October 1, 2011

(in millions of U.S. dollars North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total

Revenu

Carbonated soft drink $ 192.¢ $ 47 .t $ 9¢€ $ — $ 249.¢

Juice 144.1 34 0.7 — 148.2

Concentratt 2.t 0.7 — 6.C 9.2

All other products 128.7 72.€ 2.4 — 204.(

Total $ 468.1 $ 124.F $ 12 $ 6.0 $ 611.2
For the Three Months Ended October 1, 2011

(in millions of physical case North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total

Volume- 8 0z equivalent cased otal Beverage (including

concentrate’

Carbonated soft drink 90.¢ 25.t 6.C — 122.¢

Juice 32.t 1.C 0.8 — 34.2

Concentratt 19.t 2.€ — 60.2 82.:

All other products 64.€ 26.5 1.9 — 93.C

Total 207.k 55.€ 8.7 60.2 332.(
For the Nine Months Ended October 1, 2011

(in millions of U.S. dollars North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total

Revenu

Carbonated soft drink $ 549.¢ $ 134.2 $ 31.: $ — $ 715«

Juice 456.% 9.6 24 — 468.:

Concentratt 6.8 24 — 20.1 29.c

All other products 375.3 190.4 6.7 — 572.

Total $ 1,388. $ 336.¢ $ 40. $ 20.1 $1,785.¢
For the Nine Months Ended October 1, 2011

(in millions of physical case North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total

Volume- 8 0z equivalent cas- Total Beverage (including concentra

Carbonated soft drink 262.( 73.2 20.t — 355.%

Juice 104.¢ 2.7 21 — 109.2

Concentratt 63.1 11.4 — 204.: 278.¢

All other products 190.¢ 70.C 6.3 — 267.1

Total 620.c 157.% 28.¢ 204.: 1,010.¢
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Results of operations

The following tables summarize the change in reednureporting segment for the three and nine nwatided September 29, 2012 and

October 1, 2011, respectively:

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except percentag

Change in revenue

Impact of foreign exchan¢®
Change excluding foreign exchar
Percentage change in revet

Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignaagz

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except percentag

Change in revenue

Impact of foreign exchanc®
Change excluding foreign exchar
Percentage change in revet

Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgz

For the Three Months Ended
September 29, 201,

North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI
$(275 $(28¢ $ 1.0 $ (3.0 $33
5.5 1.€ 2.9 1.C —

$(22.0 $(2729 $ 39 $(20 $33
45%  6.2%  0.8% -23.6% 55.0%

-3.€% -5.8% 3.1% -15./% 55.(%

For the Nine Months Ended
September 29, 201,

North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI
$(52.0 $(65.1) $ 194 $(11.9 $5.C
17.2 5.C 8.3 3.9 —

$(34.¢) $(60.)) $ 277 $ (74 $5C
-2.5% -4.7% 5.8 -28.(% 24.9%

-1.S% -4.2% 8.2% -18.4% 24. %

! Impact of foreign exchange is the difference betwide current year's revenue translated utilizimg ¢urrent year's average foreign
exchange rates less the current’s revenue translated utilizing the prior y's average foreign exchange ra

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except percentag

Change in revenue

Impact of foreign exchanc
Change excluding foreign exchar
Percentage change in revet

Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgz

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except percentag

Change in revenue

Impact of foreign exchanc
Change excluding foreign exchar
Percentage change in revet

Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignaagz

For the Three Months Ended
QOctober 1, 2011
North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI

$124. $96: $ 27 $02 § (0.9

7.0 (2.7 (3.8 (05 —
$117.. $93€ $ 241 $(0.2 $ (0.0
255 250  28.9%  2.4% -1.6%

24.1%  25.2% 24.5% -1.6€% -1.€%

For the Nine Months Ended
QOctober 1, 2011
North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI

$510¢ $4522/ $ 592 $2C $ (2.9

(26.0 (7.9 (159 (2.9  —
$484.C $444F $ 4324 $(0.2) $ (2.9
40.% 48.5%  21./% 52% -12.2%

38.(%  47.2% 15.6% -0.8% -12.2%

! Impact of foreign exchange is the difference betwie current year's revenue translated utilizimg ¢urrent year's average foreign
exchange rates less the current’s revenue translated utilizing the prior y's average foreign exchange ra
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The following table summarizes our EBITDA and Adggs EBITDA for the three and nine months ended &aper 29, 2012 and
October 1, 2011, respectively.

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars September 29, 201 October 1, 201. September 29, 201 October 1, 201,
Net income attributed to Cott Corporation $ 145 $ 16.2 $ 455 $ 49.t
Interest expense, n 13.1 14.4 40.€ 43.2
Income tax expense (bene! 1.2 4.0 5.5 (1.7
Depreciation & amortizatio 24.7 24.C 72.2 71.2
Net income attributable to n-controlling interest: 1.3 1.1 3.4 3.1
EBITDA $ 54.¢ $ 51.7 $ 167.2 $ 165.7
Acquisition adjustment

Earnout adjustmer — 0.¢ — 0.¢

Inventory ste-up (ste|-down) — 0.2 0.1 (3.9

Integration cost 1.3 1.6 3.1 3.C
Adjusted EBITDA $ 56.1 $ 54.6 $ 170.2 $ 165.¢

Revenue- Revenue decreased $27.5 million or 4.5% and $52li@mor 2.9% in the third quarter and year toalaespectively, from th
comparable prior year periods. Excluding the immddoreign exchange, revenue decreased 3.6% &84 ih. the third quarter and year to d
respectively, from the comparable prior year pesiod

North America revenue decreased $28.8 million 8%6and $65.1 million or 4.7% in the third quartadear to date, respectively, from
the comparable prior year periods due primarilgnd.4% and 7.5% decrease in beverage case votuthe ihird quarter and year to date,
respectively, from the comparable prior year pesiddiet selling price per beverage case (whichtsevenue divided by beverage case
volume) increased 2.4% and 3.0% in the third quane year to date, respectively, from the comgarpbor year periods. The increase in net
selling price per beverage case was due primarigyprice increase implemented to mitigate risimguaodity costs and was more than offset
by our exit from certain low gross margin businasd a product mix shift into sports drinks from ¥%®8helf-stable juice.

U.K. revenue increased $1.0 million or 0.8% and.41#8illion or 5.8% in the third quarter and yeadate, respectively, from the
comparable prior year periods due primarily to gargd improvement in product mix and growth in tieolesale channel. Net selling price
beverage case increased 4.0% and 7.7% in thegh&nder and year to date, respectively, from thregarable prior year periods due primarily
to price increases implemented to mitigate risiogumodity costs and an improved product mix. Abgergign exchange impact, U.K. rever
increased 3.1% and 8.2% in the third quarter aied fedate, respectively, from the comparable préar periods.

Mexico revenue decreased $3.0 million or 23.6%%i3 million or 28.0% in the third quarter and yeadate, respectively, from the
comparable prior year periods due primarily toribe-renewal of a regional brand license. As a tedithe current product mix, Mexico saw
an increase in net selling price per beverage @g363% and 9.5% in the third quarter and yearate drespectively. Absent foreign exchange
impact, Mexico revenue decreased 15.7% and 18.4%egithird quarter and year to date, respectifedyn the comparable prior year periods.

RCI revenue increased $3.3 million or 55.0% an® $&illion or 24.9% in the third quarter and yeadtde, respectively, from the
comparable prior year periods. Concentrate volumeeased 28.4% and 7.6% in the third quarter andtgedate, respectively, from the
comparable prior year periods due primarily to @ased shipments to Asia and South America. Nenhggdlice per case increased 20.4% and
15.9% in the third quarter and year to date, rabpadg, from the comparable prior year periods. BPp@marily sells concentrate.

Cost of Sales- Cost of sales represented 87.5% and 86.8% ofivevie the third quarter and year to date, respalgticompared to
88.9% and 87.4% in the comparable prior year psridtie decrease in cost of sales as a percentageavfue in the third quarter was due
primarily to the price increases implemented tdagate rising commodity costs and an improved produg. Variable costs represented 76.
and 76.0% of revenue in the third quarter and y@date, respectively, compared to 78.9% and 77m3%te comparable prior year periods.
Major elements of these variable costs includededignt and packaging costs, distribution costsfaad paid to third-party manufacturers.

Gross Profit— Gross profit as a percentage of revenue incre@ask?.5% and 13.2% in the third quarter and yealate, respectively,
from 11.1% and 12.6% in the comparable prior yemiogls, due primarily to increased pricing on preddiand our exit from certain low gross
margin business.
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Selling, General and Administrative ExpensesSG&A increased $5.7 million or 15.4% and $6. lliomil or 4.8% in the third quarter and
year to date, respectively, from the comparablerpréar periods. The increase was due primaripntincrease of certain emplo-related
costs compared to a lowering of the annual incerdivd long-term incentive accruals from the comgargrior year periods. As a percentage
of revenue, SG&A increased to 7.5% and 7.8% irthird quarter and year to date from 6.2% and 7.2%é& comparable prior year periods.

Operating Income- Operating income was $28.6 million and $92.8 millin the third quarter and year to date, respelgtivempared tc
$29.0 million and $96.4 million, respectively, iletcomparable prior year periods. The decreadeeithird quarter and year to date was due
primarily to lower overall sales relative to thégoryear periods, as well as higher SG&A costssetfpartly by higher gross profit as a
percentage of revenue.

Other (Income) Expense Other income was $1.5 million and $2.2 milliorthe third quarter and year to date, respectivapared to
other expense of $1.3 million and $2.1 million pestively, in the comparable prior year periodse Tiitrease year to date was due to insur
recoveries in excess of the loss incurred on a fdddity in the amount of $1.3 million and a gain bargain purchase in the amount of $0.9
million in the U.K. There was not a significant iaqqi from foreign exchange rates.

Income Tax Expense (Benefit} Income tax expense was $1.2 million and $5.5anilin the third quarter and year to date, respebtj
compared to a benefit of $4.0 million and $1.7 imil| respectively, in the comparable prior yeaiquts. The year to date increase was due
primarily to the recording of $4.3 million of all@mces against deferred tax assets in the U.Satthaicertain to be realized and the lapping c
a favorable tax settlement in the prior year. Duthe global restructuring during the second quaft®011 our annual effective tax rate is
expected to be lower than the statutory rate ferctivrent year.

Liquidity and Financial Condition

The following table summarizes our cash flows far three and nine months ended September 29, 20t1@etober 1, 2011,
respectively, as reported in our Consolidated 8tates of Cash Flows in the accompanying ConsolitlBieancial Statements:

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars September 29, 201 October 1, 201. September 29, 201 October 1, 201,
Net cash provided by operati

activities $ 58.( $ 63.¢ $ 53.C $ 59.€
Net cash used in investir

activities (15.9) (35.9) (61.0) (62.7)
Net cash used in financir

activities (3.9 (23.9) (7.€) (7.0
Effect of exchange rate changes

cash 2.2 (1.2 2.8 0.1
Net increase (decrease) in casl

cash equivalent 41.C 4.2 (12.9) (20.0
Cash & cash equivalents,

beginning of periot 47.1 24.C 100.¢ 48.2
Cash & cash equivalents, end ol

period $ 88.1 $ 28.2 $ 88.1 $ 28.2

Financial and Capital Resources and Liquidity

As of September 29, 2012, we had total debt of #668llion and $88.1 million of cash and cash eglents compared to $609.3 million
of debt and $28.2 million of cash and cash equitalas of October 1, 2011.

We believe that our level of resources, which idelsicash on hand, available borrowings under aathased lending credit facility (tt
“ABL facility”) and funds provided by operationsjiwbe adequate to meet our expenses, capital ekpeas, and debt service obligations for
the next twelve months. We have maintained adediapiielity to meet current working capital requirents, fund capital expenditures and
make scheduled principal and interest paymentsbh dbsent deterioration of market conditions,beéeve that cash flows from operating
activities and financing activities will provide eguate resources to satisfy working capital, scleeldorincipal and interest payments on debt,
and anticipated capital expansion requirementbdtin short-term and long-term capital needs, asasahe payment of future dividends. For
periods extending beyond twelve months, we belieaéour ability to generate cash to meet our egegmnd debt service obligations and to
otherwise reduce our debt as anticipated will ddgamarily on our ability to retain a substangahount of volume from our key customers
and maintain the profitability of our businesswi do not generate sufficient cash from operat@msave excess debt availability to meet our
expenses and debt service obligations or if the Adglility, the 8.375% senior notes that are dudomember 15, 2017 (the “2017 Notes”) or
the 2018 Notes were to become currently due, e#theraturity or as a result of a breach, we maseljaired to take actions such as amending
our ABL facility, the indenture governing the 20Mldtes, or the indenture governing the 2018 Notfsancing all or part of our existing de
selling assets, incurring additional indebtednegsiging equity. If we need to seek additionahfining, there is no assurance that this
additional financing will be available on favoraldems or at all.
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Should we desire to consummate significant acgoisipportunities or undertake significant expansetivities, our capital needs wo
increase and could result in our needing to bomwailable amounts under the ABL facility, increas@ilable borrowings under our ABL
facility or access public or private debt or equitgrkets.

As of September 29, 2012, our total availabilitglenthe ABL facility was $275.0 million, which wassed on our borrowing base
(accounts receivable, inventory and fixed assetgf &ctober 15, 2012 (the September month-endruhdderms of the credit agreement
governing our ABL facility), and we had no ABL bowings outstanding and $11.0 million in outstandetters of credit. As a result, our
excess availability under the ABL facility was $284nillion. Each montts borrowing base is not effective until submittedhe lenders, whic
usually occurs on the fifteenth day of the follogrimonth.

We may, from time to time, depending on market @bmas, including without limitation whether the PD Notes or 2018 Notes are then
trading at discounts to their respective face artguapurchase the 2017 Notes or 2018 Notes fdr @ad/or in exchange for shares of our
common stock, warrants, preferred stock, debtlveratonsideration, in each case in open markehpses and/or privately negotiated
transactions. The amounts involved in any suctstetions, individually or in the aggregate, mayraderial. However, the covenants in our
ABL facility subject such purchases to certain tatibpns and conditions.

Operating activities

Cash provided by operating activities was $53.0ionilyear to date compared to $59.6 million in tieenparable prior year period. The
$6.6 million decrease was due primarily to the tignof inventory, prepaids and accounts payable paysn offset in part by accounts
receivable receipts and income tax recoveries.

Investing activities

Cash used in investing activities was $61.0 miljear to date compared to $62.7 million in the caraple prior year period. The $1.7
million decrease was due primarily to not making aantingent consideration payments in 2012, the atwo facilities, and the recovery of
insurance proceeds on a third facility, offsetamtfpy increased capital expenditure investmendstia@ acquisition of a beverage and whole
business in our U.K. reporting segment. The praaryperiod included contingent consideration paymeh$21.0 million paid in connection
with the Cliffstar Acquisition.

Financing activities

Cash used in financing activities was $7.6 millj@ar to date compared to $17.0 million in the corapke prior year period. The $9.4
million decrease was due primarily to ABL borrowsnig the prior year period.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as defimde Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K as of Seyiter 29, 2012.

Contractual Obligations

We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Kifi@ year ended December 31,
2011.

Debt
Asset Based Lending Credit Facil

On March 31, 2008, we entered into a credit agre¢mih JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. as Agent thattecean ABL facility to provide
financing for our North America, U.K. and Mexicqoating segments. In connection with the Cliffsdaquisition, we refinanced the ABL
facility on August 17, 2010 to, among other thingvide for the Cliffstar Acquisition, the issu@&nof the 2018 Notes and the application of
net proceeds therefrom, the underwritten publieraffy of 13,340,000 common shares at a price &&per share and the application of net
proceeds therefrom, and to increase the amoungalafor borrowings to $275.0 million. We drew dow portion of the indebtedness under
the ABL facility in order to fund the Cliffstar Acdggsition. We incurred $5.4 million of financing @& connection with the refinancing of the
ABL facility.

On July 19, 2012, we amended the ABL facility tmamg other things, extend the maturity date toegifluly 19, 2017 or, if we have not
redeemed, repurchased or refinanced the 2017 Kpteky 1, 2017, May 15, 2017. We incurred $1.2ianllof financing fees in connection
with the amendment of the ABL facility.

40



Table of Contents

The financing fees incurred in connection with ténancing of the ABL facility on August 17, 2018lpng with the financing fees
incurred in connection with the amendment of thd A&cility on July 19, 2012, are being amortizedhgsthe straight line method over the
duration of the amended ABL facility.

As of September 29, 2012, we had no outstandingotimgs under the ABL facility. The commitment feas 0.375% per annum of the
unused commitment, which, taking into account $Mildon of letters of credit, was $264.0 millios af September 29, 2012.

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

On August 17, 2010, we issued $375.0 million of20&8 Notes. The issuer of the 2018 Notes is owliytowned subsidiary Cott
Beverages Inc., but Cott Corporation and mostolitS., Canadian and U.K. subsidiaries guaran®@@i8 Notes. The interest on the 2018
Notes is payable se-annually on March # and Septembett 1 of each year.

We incurred $8.6 million of financing fees in cortien with the 2018 Notes. The financing fees am@ amortized using the effective
interest method over an eight-year period, whighesents the duration of the 2018 Notes.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

On November 13, 2009, we issued $215.0 milliorhef2017 Notes. The 2017 Notes were issued at an§iBidn discount. The issuer of
the 2017 Notes is our wholly-owned subsidiary @mterages Inc., but Cott Corporation and mostsofiitS., Canadian and U.K. subsidiaries
guarantee the 2017 Notes. The interest on the R01&5s is payable semi-annually on Mayt15 and Nowribth of each year.

We incurred $5.1 million of financing fees in cootien with the 2017 Notes. The financing fees amd amortized using the effective
interest method over an eight-year period, whighesents the duration of the 2017 Notes.

Credit Ratings and Covenant Compliance
Credit Ratings

On September 26, 2012, Standard & Poor’s raisddntgterm corporate credit rating on Cott anddténg on the 2017 Notes and 2018
Notes tc“B+” from “B”. The rating outlook remains at “stadl’

On September 26, 2012, Moody’s raised Cott’s ratatjook to “positive” from “stable”, affirmed it®ng-term corporate credit rating on
Cott at “B2” and affirmed its rating on the 2017tN®and 2018 Notes at “B3.”

Covenant Compliance
ABL Facility

Under the credit agreement governing the ABL fagilCott Corporation and its restricted subsidsdee subject to a number of busines:
and financial covenants, including a covenant néiggiia minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of astel.1 to 1.0 effective when and if exces:
availability is less than the greater of (a) $3@ilion and (b) the lesser of (i) 12.5% of the ambaf the aggregate borrowing base or (ii) $37.
million. If availability is less than $37.5 milligrthe lenders will take dominion over the cash aiibapply excess cash to reduce amounts
owing under the facility.

On July 19, 2012, we, and the other parties toAfBE facility, agreed to amend the ABL facility tamong other things (a) extend the
maturity date to either July 19, 2017 or, if we &awot redeemed, repurchased or refinanced the26tes by May 1, 2017, May 15, 2017,
(b) change the threshold at which the springingimrmiim fixed charge coverage ratio would be testddcklthreshold will now be met if exce
availability is less than the greater of 10% of lgmeders’ commitments under the revolving credility (the “Revolver”) or $27.5 million, and
(c) change the threshold at which the springindy casminion provision would become effective, whibheshold will now be met if excess
availability is less than the greater of 12.5%lw&f kenders’ commitments under the Revolver or $&8lillion. Although the minimum fixed
charge coverage ratio was not triggered as of Sege29, 2012, the ratio as calculated under thwgigant was greater than 1.1 to 1.0. We
were in compliance with all of the applicable coaets under the ABL facility as of September 29,201

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

Under the indenture governing the 2018 Notes, wesabject to a number of covenants, including caménthat limit our and certain of
our subsidiaries’ ability, subject to certain extoeps and qualifications, to (i) pay dividends oake distributions, repurchase equity securities
prepay subordinated debt or make certain invessnéijtincur additional debt or issue certain dialified stock or preferred stock, (iii) create
or incur liens on assets securing indebtednegsi@rge or consolidate with another company oradktir substantially all of our assets taken
as a whole, (v) enter into transactions with &fféis and (vi) sell assets. We have been in congdiaith all of the covenants under the 2018
Notes and there have been no amendments to anygsuehants since the 2018 Notes were iss
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8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

Under the indenture governing the 2017 Notes, wesabject to a number of covenants, including camenthat limit our and certain of
our subsidiaries’ ability, subject to certain extoeps and qualifications, to (i) pay dividends oake distributions, repurchase equity securities
prepay subordinated debt or make certain invessnéijtincur additional debt or issue certain dialified stock or preferred stock, (iii) create
or incur liens on assets securing indebtednegsim@rge or consolidate with another company oradetir substantially all of our assets taken
as a whole, (v) enter into transactions with &fféis and (vi) sell assets. We have been in congdiaith all of the covenants under the 2017
Notes and there have been no amendments to anygsuehants since the 2017 Notes were iss

Common Share Repurchase Program

On May 1, 2012, our Board of Directors authorizeel tepurchase of up to $35.0 million of our comrabares in the open market or
through privately negotiated transactions over -antidth period through either a 10b5-1 automatiditrg plan or at management’s discretion
in compliance with regulatory requirements, andegimarket, cost and other considerations. We ablearo predict the number of shares tha
will be repurchased under the share repurchasegm@r the aggregate dollar amount of the sharembly purchased. We may discontinue
purchases at any time, subject to compliance wighieable regulatory requirements. During the selcgmarter of 2012, we repurchased 35
common shares for approximately $0.3 million thiowgen market transactions. No repurchases were ohatthg the three months ended
September 29, 2012.

Capital Structure

Since December 31, 2011, our equity has increag&®.0 million. The increase was the result ofinebme of $45.5 million, share-
based compensation expense of $3.5 million, aner @ibmprehensive income of $13.3 million, partlfsef by common share repurchases of
$0.3 million.

Dividend Payments

There are certain restrictions on the paymentwtldhnds under our ABL facility and under the indees governing the 2017 Notes and
2018 Notes. No dividend payments were made duhaditst nine months of 2012 or in 2011. On Octdkier2012, the Board of Directors
declared a dividend of CAD $0.06 per share on comsi@res, payable in cash on December 20, 201#te®wvners of record at the close of
business on December 4, 2012. Cott intends to pagwar quarterly dividend on its common shardsgesii to, among other things, the best
interests of its shareowners, Cott’s results ofajpens, cash balances and future cash requirepfarascial condition, statutory regulations
and covenants set forth in the ABL facility andéntures governing the 2017 Notes and 2018 Notasekhss other factors that the Board of
Directors may deem relevant from time to time.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies require managemenhake estimates and assumptions that affecefierted amounts in the
consolidated financial statements and the accompamptes. These estimates are based on histersipakience, the advice of external expert:
or other assumptions that management believes tedsenable. Where actual amounts differ from eg#s) revisions are included in the
results for the period in which actual amounts bee&nown. Historically, differences between estedadnd actual amounts have not had a
significant impact on our consolidated financiatsments.

Critical accounting policies and estimates usegrépare the financial statements are discussedouithudit Committee as they are
implemented and on an annual basis.

We have no material changes to our Critical AccimgnPolicies and Estimates disclosure as filedunAnnual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Forward-looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this repaonay contain statements relating to future evendsfature results. These statements are
“forward-looking” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litiga Reform Act of 1995 and applicable Canadiarusées legislation an
involve known and unknown risks, uncertaintiesyfatexpectations and other factors that may catts@laresults, performance or
achievements of Cott Corporation to be materiaifiecent from any future results, performance dniaeements expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements. Such statements inglhdeare not limited to, statements that relatprigections of sales, earnings, earnings per
share, cash flows, capital expenditures or otmamitial items, discussions of estimated futuremegeenhancements and cost savings. These
statements also relate to our business strategys gad expectations concerning our market posifidore operations, margins, profitability,
liquidity and capital resources. Generally, wordstsas “anticipate,” “believe,” “continue,” “couldiendeavor,” “estimate,” “expect,”

“intend,” “may,” “will,” “plan,” “predict,” “project,” “should” and similar terms and phrases are usddentify forward-looking statements in
this report and in the documents incorporated irieport by reference. These forwdodking statements reflect current expectationargigc
future events and operating performance and aremaly as of the date of this report.

The forward-looking statements are not guarantéésture performance or events and, by their natare based on certain estimates ant
assumptions regarding interest and foreign excheatgs, expected growth, results of operationdppmance, business prospects and
opportunities and effective income tax rates, whitd subject to inherent risks and uncertaintiesteMal factors or assumptions that were
applied in drawing a conclusion or making an esténs®t out in forward-looking statements may inelusut are not limited to, assumptions
regarding management’s current plans and estimatesbility to remain a low cost supplier, andeetfve management of commodity costs.
Although we believe the assumptions underlyingeatfesward-looking statements are reasonable, atlyesie assumptions could prove to be
inaccurate and, as a result, the forward-lookiatestents based on those assumptions could prdeitaorrect. Our operations involve risks
and uncertainties, many of which are outside ofamntrol, and any one or any combination of théslesrand uncertainties could also affect
whether the forward-looking statements ultimateaigve to be correct. These risks and uncertaintieiside, but are not limited to, those
described in Part |, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in ddmnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwer 31, 2011, and those described
from time to time in our future reports filed withe Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)@adadian securities regulatory
authorities.

The following are some of the factors that couli@etfour financial performance, including but niatited to, sales, earnings and cash
flows, or could cause actual results to differ matly from estimates contained in or underlying forward-looking statements:
» our ability to compete successfully in the highbmpetitive beverage catego

» changes in consumer tastes and preferences foingqwoducts and our ability to develop and timielynch new products that
appeal to such changing consumer tastes and preés;

* loss of or a reduction in business with key cust@ngarticularly Walmart

» fluctuations in commodity prices and our abilitypass on increased costs to our customers, anchffaet of those increased prices
on our volumes

e our ability to manage our operations successf

» currency fluctuations that adversely affect thehexge between the U.S. dollar and the British pateding, the Euro, the
Canadian dollar, the Mexican peso and other cuiesr

e our ability to maintain favorable arrangements eeldtionships with our supplier

« our ability to realize the expected benefits of @ifstar Acquisition because of integration diffities and other challenge
» risks associated with the asset purchase agreemtared into in connection with the Cliffstar Acsjtion;

e our substantial indebtedness we incurred and dlityalo meet our obligations

» our ability to maintain compliance with the covetsaand conditions under our debt agreeme

» fluctuations in interest rate

» credit rating change:

» the impact of global financial events on our finahcesults;

» our ability to fully realize the expected cost says8 and/or operating efficiencies from our restiting activities;
e any disruption to production at our beverage cotraégs or other manufacturing facilitie

« our ability to protect our intellectual proper

« compliance with product health and safety stand:
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» liability for injury or illness caused by the comsption of contaminated produc

» liability and damage to our reputation as a resiilitigation or legal proceeding

» changes in the legal and regulatory environmemthiitch we operate

» the impact of proposed taxes on soda and othensdgaks;

» enforcement of compliance with the Ontario Enviremtal Protection Act

e unseasonably cold or wet weather, which could redignand for our beverag:

« the impact of national, regional and global evemmtsluding those of a political, economic, businasd competitive natur

e our ability to recruit, retain, and integrate newrmagement and a new management struc

* our exposure to intangible asset ri

» our ability to renew our collective bargaining agreents on satisfactory tern

» disruptions in our information systen

» volatility of our stock price; o

» our ability to maintain compliance with the listingguirements of the New York Stock Exchar

We undertake no obligation to update any infornmationtained in this report or to publicly reledse tesults of any revisions to forward-

looking statements to reflect events or circumstaraf which we may become aware of after the datt@oreport. Undue reliance should not

be placed on forward-looking statements, and éliruwritten and oral forward-looking statementsilatitable to us or persons acting on our
behalf are expressly qualified in their entiretytbg foregoing.

ltem 3.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures abut Market Risk
We do not trade market risk sensitive instruments.

Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Our North America and U.K. reporting segments paseha portion of their inventory for our Canadiad &European operations,
respectively, through transactions denominatedsatited in U.S. dollars and Euros, respectivelyrencies different from the functional
currency of those operations. These inventory mseb are subject to exposure from movements iraegehrates. We use foreign exchange
forward contracts to hedge operational exposuigdtiag from changes in these foreign currency arge rates. The intent of the foreign
exchange contracts is to provide predictabilitpim overall cost structure. These foreign excharmgeracts, carried at fair value, have
maturities of less than one year. As of SeptemBeP@12, we had outstanding foreign exchange fatwantracts with notional amounts of
$20.8 million.

Debt Obligations and Interest Rates

We have exposure to interest rate risk from thetantling principal amounts of our short-term amdjiterm debt. Our long-term debt is
fixed and our short-term debt is variable. Our Afatility is vulnerable to fluctuations in the U $hort-term base rate and the LIBOR rate. At
current debt levels as of September 29, 2012, &&6i3 point increase in the current per annunmaataate for our ABL facility (excluding tt
$11.0 million in outstanding letters of credit) wduesult in less than $0.1 million of additionaterest expense during the next year. This
change would not be material to our cash flowsusrresults of operations. The weighted-averageésteate of our debt outstanding at
September 29, 2012 was 8.2%.

Commodity Price Risk

We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Kifi@ year ended December 31,
2011.
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ltem 4. Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and phaes as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15¢ledSecurities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). The Comgamgdnagement, under the supervision and with theipation of the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, dad out an evaluation of the effectiveness of thgigh and operation of the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures as of SepteBh&t012. Based upon this evaluation, the Compablief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that, as of Septem!8r2012, the Company’s disclosure controls andgmomes are functioning effectively to
ensure that information required to be disclosethieyCompany in reports filed or submitted underBxchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipe in SEC rules and forms, and accumulated@mmunicated to the Company’s
management, including the Company’s Chief Execufiffecer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow tityedecisions regarding required
disclosure.

In addition, our management carried out an evalnats required by Rule 13a-15(d) of the Exchangfe With the participation of our
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial io#fr, of changes in our internal control over fic@ahreporting. Based on this evaluation,
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial ioér concluded that there have been no changesrimtrnal control over financial
reporting during our most recent fiscal quartet treve materially affected, or are reasonably Yikelmaterially affect, our internal control o
financial reporting.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
ltem 1. Legal Proceedings
Reference is made to the legal proceedings desicirbeur Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgabr ended December 31, 2011.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There has been no material change in our riskfasiace December 31, 2011. Please refer to oun&riReport on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 for a detaiestription of our risk factors.

ltem 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds
Common Share Repurchase Program

On May 1, 2012, our Board of Directors authorizeel tepurchase of up to $35.0 million of our comrabares in the open market or
through privately negotiated transactions over -antihth period through either a 10b5-1 automatiditrg plan or at management’s discretion
in compliance with regulatory requirements, andegimarket, cost and other considerations. We ablearo predict the number of shares tha
will be repurchased under the share repurchasegm@r the aggregate dollar amount of the sharembly purchased. We may discontinue
purchases at any time, subject to compliance vgiieable regulatory requirements. We repurcha&f72 shares of common stock for
approximately $0.3 million during the second quaofe2012. No repurchases were made during the thienths ended September 29, 2012.
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Iltem 6. Exhibits

Number

3.1

3.2

10.1

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

101

Description

Articles of Amalgamation of Cott Corporation (inporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our FormKl@ated February 28,
2007).

Second Amended and Restated By-laws of Cott Catiporéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to &orm 10-Q filed
May 10, 2007)

Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement, dated as lgf 9, 2012, by and among Cott Corporation, Cottddages Inc., Cliffstar
LLC, and Cott Beverages Limited, as Borrowers,dtieer Loan Parties party thereto, the Lenders ghegeto, and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (filedewith).

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended September 29, 2012 (filed herewi

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fa@2he quarterly period
ended September 29, 2012 (filed herewi

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended September 29, 2012 (furnished herew

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended September 29, 2012 (furnished herew

The following financial statements from Cott Corgiton’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the geagnded September 29,
2012, filed on November 1, 2012, formatted in XBgIXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Cbdated Statements of
Operations, (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statema#r@®mprehensive Income, (iii) Consolidated BalaSbteets, (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v) Cona@itl Statements of Equity, (vi) Notes to the Cddatéd Financial Stateme!
(furnished herewith)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussdréport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

COTT CORPORATION
(Registrant

Date: November 1, 2012 /sl Jay Wells
Jay Wells
Chief Financial Officer
(On behalf of the Compan

Date: November 1, 2012 /sl Gregory Leite
Gregory Leitel
Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer akabistant
Secretary
(Principal Accounting Officer

Exhibit Index

Number Description
3.1 Articles of Amalgamation of Cott Corporation (inporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Forr-K dated February 28, 2007

3.2 Second Amended and Restated By-laws of Cott Catiporéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to orm 10-Q filed May
10, 2007).

10.1 Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement, dated as lgf 09, 2012, by and among Cott Corporation, Cottdages Inc., Cliffstar
LLC, and Cott Beverages Limited, as Borrowers,dtieer Loan Parties party thereto, the Lenders gheseto, and JPMorgan Chi
Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (filed herew)it

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period ended
September 29, 2012 (filed herewit

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period ended
September 29, 2012 (filed herewit

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period ended
September 29, 2012 (furnished herewi

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period ended
September 29, 2012 (furnished herewi

101 The following financial statements from Cott Corgiion’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the geagnded September 29,
2012, filed on November 1, 2012, formatted in XBgIXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Cbdated Statements of
Operations, (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statemar@®mprehensive Income, (iii) Consolidated BalaSbeets, (iv) Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows, (v) Consolidated StatesradrEquity, (vi) Notes to the Consolidated Finah&tatements (furnished
herewith).
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Exhibit 10.1
EXECUTION VERSIOM

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO CREDIT AGREEMENT, dated a$July 19, 2012 (this “ Amendmefjt by and among Cott
Corporation Corporation Cott, a corporation orgadiander the laws of Canada, Cott Beverages Irig@eaxgia corporation, Cliffstar LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, and Cott Bevgea Limited, a company organized under the lawsngfiand and Wales, as Borrowers, the
other Loan Parties party hereto, the Lenders paetgto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., London Braas UK Security Trustee, JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent and Adstiative Collateral Agent, and General Electrigifa Corporation, as Co-Collateral
Agent. Each capitalized term used herein and nfinetk herein shall have the meaning ascribed thénethe Credit Agreement referred to
below.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Borrowers, the other Loan Partiesieders, the Administrative Agent, the UK Secufitystee, the
Administrative Collateral Agent, the Co-Collatefadent, and the other parties party thereto, arégsato that certain Credit Agreement, dated
as of August 17, 2010 (as amended by that certaieriment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dated as ofl ABr 2012 and as may be further
amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise raddifom time to time prior to the date hereof, ti@&redit Agreement; and as amended by
this Amendment, the * Amended Credit Agreenignand

WHEREAS, the Borrowers have requested that the Athtnative Agent and the Lenders agree to amertdingurovisions of the
Credit Agreement on the terms and subject to tinglitions expressly set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premisdédath above, and other good and valuable conatiter, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, gaatty hereto is willing to agree to amend certamvisions of the Credit Agreement on the
terms and subject to the conditions expresslyas#t herein.

I. Amendments to Credit Agreemertffective as of the Amendment No. 2 Effective ®@s defined below), each party hereto herebyeagre
that the Credit Agreement shall be and hereby israted as follows:

1. The cover page of the Credit Agreement is heegbgnded by deleting the word “and” immediatelgiathe phrase “as Co-
Collateral Agent,” and replacing it with the follavg:

“DEUTSCHE BANK AG NEW YORK BRANCH,
as Syndication Agent, and”

2. The definition of “ 2009 Notésis hereby amended by inserting the phrase “Novamib,” immediately after the phrasg375%
Senior Notes dU”.



3. The definition of “ Aggregate Borrowing Ba’ses hereby amended by replacing the referencegmtimber “$150,000,000”
contained therein with a reference to the numb#&#75$000,000".

4. The definition of “ Amortization Commencementt®ais hereby amended and restated in its entirefplisys:

“ Amortization Commencement Dateneans June 1, 2011.”

5. The definition of “ Applicable Commitment FeetRais hereby amended by (A) deleting the phraseadyigedthat until
August 31, 2010, the “Applicable Commitment FeeeRahall be the applicable rate per annum set foetbw in Category 1”; (B) deleting the
reference to the percentage “0.50%" contained thened replacing it with a reference to the peragat‘0.375%” and (C) deleting the
reference to the percentage “0.375%" containecethemd replacing it with the a reference to the@eatage “0.25%”".

6. The definition of “ Applicable Rateis hereby amended and restated in its entirefplésvs:

e

pplicable Rate” means, for any day, with respect to any ABR Ldaanadian Prime Loan, Eurodollar Loan, CDOR Loan, o
Overnight LIBO Loan, as the case may be, the agpléerate per annum set forth below under the @appABR Spread”, “Canadian Prime
Spread”, “Eurodollar Spread”, “CDOR Spread” or “@wight LIBO Spread”, as the case may be, based tipoBorrowers’ Average
Aggregate Availability during the most recent fisgaarter of the Borrowers.
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Canadia Overnigh

Eurodolla CDOFR

ABR Prime LIBO
Average Aggregate Availabilit Sprea Spreac Spreac Spreai Spreac
Category 1
> $150,000,001 0.25% 0.25% 1.7%% 1.7%% 1.7%%
Category 2
< $150,000,000 but
> $75,000,00( 0.5(% 0.5(% 2.0(% 2.0(% 2.0(%
Cateqgory 3
< $75,000,00(¢ 0.7%% 0.7% 2.25% 2.25% 2.25%

For purposes of the foregoing, (a) the ApplicabdéeRshall be determined as of the end of eachl figzater of the Borrowers based upor
the Borrowers’ Aggregate Borrowing Base Certificatielivered from time to time pursuant to Sectidilfnd outstanding during such fiscal
quarter, (b) each change in the Applicable Ratelting from a change in the Borrowers’ Average Aggate Availability shall be effective on
the first day of the next fiscal quarter, providbdt the Average Aggregate Availability for purpssd determining the Applicable Rate shal
deemed to be in Category 3 (A) at any time thaEeent of Default has occurred and is continuingBjrat the option of the Administrative
Agent or at the request of the Required LendettseifBorrowers fail to deliver the Borrowing Baserifieates required to be delivered by them
pursuant to Section 5.01, during the period fromehkpiration of the time for delivery thereof urgiich Borrowing Base Certificates are
delivered and (c) until the delivery of the Borrag/eAggregate Borrowing Base Certificate pursuanBéction 5.01, the Applicable Rate shall
be determined based upon the Borrowers’ Averagedggde Availability for the quarter ended JuneZ1,2.”

7. The definition of “ Borrowing Baskis hereby amended by deleting the referenceamtimber “$150,000,00@0ontained therei
and replacing it with a reference to the numbef7%000,000".



8. The definition of “ Borrowing Base Reporting daer Level’ is hereby amended and restated in its entirefplésvys:

““ Borrowing Base Reporting Trigger Levemeans, at any time, 12.5% of the aggregate amafuzt Commitments at such time.”

9. The definition of “ Canadian Security Agreemeist hereby amended and restated in its entirefpliswys:

““ Canadian Security Agreemehimeans that certain Canadian Pledge and Secugdtgéinent, dated as of August 17, 2010, between tf
Loan Parties party thereto and the Administratiedla@eral Agent, for the benefit of the Administvat Collateral Agent and the Lenders, and
any other pledge or security agreement enteredafiier the date of this Agreement by any othem_Barty (as required by this Agreement or
any other Loan Document for the purpose of creaihgen on the property of any Loan Party organire@anada (or any other property
located therein)), or any other Person, as ameadélle date hereof by the Canadian Reaffirmatioredgent, as the same may be further
amended, restated or otherwise modified from tionénte.”

10. The definition of “ Capital Lease Obligatiohis hereby amended by adding the phrase “; praiitat, if, as a result of a
change in GAAP after the Amendment No. 2 Effechate, any Capital Lease Obligations would congitliligations in respect of an
operating lease, as defined and interpreted inrdacce with GAAP as in effect and applied on theeidment No. 2 Effective Date, then for
purposes of this Agreement, the obligations undeh $ease shall not constitute Capital Lease Otitiga.” immediately after the phrase
“determined in accordance with GAAP”.

11. The definition “ Cash Management Transitioni®et and each reference in the Credit Agreement to &rahis hereby delett
in its entirety.

12. The definition of “ Change in LaWis hereby amended by adding the phrase “; pralitiat, notwithstanding anything herein
the contrary, (x) the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Ref@mad Consumer Protection Act and all requestssruggjuirements, guidelines, statements
of policy, practice statement or directives thedrmissued in connection therewith or in impleragoh thereof and (y) all requests, rules,
requirements, guidelines, statements of policystira statement or directives promulgated by thekHar International Settlements, the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision (or any successsimilar authority) or the United States or fgreregulatory authorities, in each case
pursuant to Basel Ill, shall in each case be deaméd a “Change in Law” after the date hereofardlgss of the date enacted, adopted, issue
made or implemented.” immediately after the phfa§any Governmental Authority made or issued affter date of this Agreement”.

13. The definition of “ Disqualified Equity Interss' is hereby amended by deleting each referencegaate “August 17, 2015”
and replacing it with the date “July 19, 2017".




14. The definition of “ EBITDA' is hereby amended by deleting the referenceagmtimber “$8,700,000” contained therein and
replacing it with a reference to the number “$1,500".

15. The definition of “ Effective Dateis hereby amended and restated in its entirefplésvs:
“ Effective Date” means August 17, 2010.”

16. The definition of “ Eligible Accountsis hereby amended by deleting the sentence “NooAnt acquired in the Cliffstar
Acquisition, or generated in the business so aequimay constitute an Eligible Account until thengdetion of the Administrative Collateral
Agent’s due diligence (including its field examiiwais) relating thereto.”

17. The definition of “ Eligible Equipmetfitis hereby amended by (A) deleting the word “aatithe end of clause (f) thereof,
(B) inserting the word “and” at the end of clauggthereof, (C) deleting the phrase “ providetat notwithstanding anything contained herein
to the contrary, in the event that the Borrowe|dhil to deliver the updated appraisals requineder item 1 of Schedule 5.15 on or prior to
the dates required on such Schedule, the equiptmevtiich such delayed deliveries relate shall mosbbject to qualification as Eligible
Equipment until such time as such deliveries arapete.” at the end of such definition, and (D) iadda new clause (h) at the end of such
definition as follows:

“(h) such equipment is not invested in accordanitke $ection 6.04(0).”

18. The definition of “ Eligible Inventoryis hereby amended by deleting the sentence “Neritory acquired in the Cliffstar
Acquisition, or generated in the business so aeduimay constitute Eligible Inventory until the qaletion of the Administrative Collateral
Agent’s due diligence (including its appraisaldatiag thereto.”

19. The definition of “ Eligible Real Propertys hereby amended by deleting the phrase “; ghedj that notwithstanding anything
contained herein to the contrary, in the eventth@tBorrowers shall fail to deliver the updategrapsals, insurance reports, and environmentz
reports required under items 1, 2 and 3 of Schesldlgon or prior to the dates required on such Schethereal property to which such
delayed deliveries relate shall not be subjectuification as Eligible Real Property until suéimé as such deliveries are complete”.

20. Clause (iii) of the proviso to the definitioh“dExcluded Subsidiary is hereby amended by deleting each referenceeo t
defined term “Effective Date” in such clause anglaeing it with a reference to the defined term “&mment No. 2 Effective Date”.

21. The definition of “ Excluded Taxé&ss hereby amended by adding the clause “, anthercase of a Treaty Lender, U.S. Feders
and United Kingdom withholding Taxes imposed on anis payable (excluding, (x) the portion of Unitédgdom withholding Taxes with
respect to which the applicable Treaty Lender tiled to claim a reduction under an income taatyeand (y) United Kingdom withholding
Taxes on payments made by any guarantor underuanamtee of the obligations to the extent suchhwiting Taxes would not
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have applied if the payment had been made by theo®er rather than such guarantor) to or for thebaat of such Treaty Lender with respect
to an applicable interest in a Loan or Commitmanspant to a law in effect on the date on whiclsigh Treaty Lender acquires such interest
in the Loan or Commitment (other than pursuanttassignment request by the UK Borrower under 8e@&il19(b)) or (ii) such Treaty Lender
changes its lending office, except in each caska@xtent that, pursuant to Section 2.17, amawitksrespect to such Taxes were payable
either to such Treaty Lendsrassignor immediately before such Treaty Lendguiaed the applicable interest in the Loan or Cotmait or tc
such Treaty Lender immediately before it changgdeinding office,” immediately after the clause)“ény withholding taxes imposed under
Section 1471 or 1472 of the Code”".

22. The definition of “ Existing Letters of Crediaind each reference in the Credit Agreement tt $eian is hereby deleted in its

entirety.

23. The definition of “ Fee Lettefss hereby amended by (A) adding the phrase “aradrahd restated” immediately before the
phrase “fee letter” and (B) adding the phrase “Admeant No. 2” immediately before the phrase “EffeetDate”.

24. The definition of “ Fixed Charge Coverage Réti® hereby amended and restated in its entirefplésys:

“ Fixed Charge Coverage Ratianeans the ratio, determined as of the end of &iachl quarter of the Company for the most-regentl
ended four fiscal quarters, of (a) EBITD®Winusthe unfinanced portion of Capital ExpendituresiipRixed Charges, all calculated for the
Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated lasiccordance with GAAP.”

25. The definition of “ Fixed Charge Trigger Leveas hereby amended by deleting the phrase “theelesf (i) 12.5% of the
Aggregate Borrowing Base and (ii) $37,500,000” eglacing it with the phrase “10.0% of the aggreganount of all Commitments at such
time”.

26. The definition of “ Fixed Chargéss hereby amended by (A) deleting the phragdus (g) any payments by the Company or its
Subsidiaries related to any purchase of the 20G8$\ar the 2010 Notes pursuant to Section 6.09(b¥rd (B) deleting the sentence “For
purposes of determining Fixed Charges as of any fdatthe period of four consecutive fiscal quatended on or prior to March 31, 2011,

(x) the Fixed Charges for the fiscal quarter enditliary 3, 2010 shall be $26,100,000, (y) the Fdearges for the fiscal quarter ended
April 3, 2010 shall be $26,300,000 and (z) the Eigharges for the fiscal quarter ended July 3, Z0H) be $26,000,000".

27. The definition of “ Loan Documentss hereby amended by inserting the phrase “Rbaffirmation Agreements,” immediately
before the phrase “and all other agreements, imgtnts, documents and certificates identified intiSeet.01”".

28. The definition of “ Maturity Dat&is hereby amended by deleting the phrase “Au@ids2014 or” and replacing it with the
phrase “the earliest of (a) July 19, 2017, (b) Iyafeat the close of business on May 1, 2017 tB@2Notes have not been redeemed,
repurchased or otherwise refinanced in full, May2®L7 or (c)”".



29. The definition “ New Equity and each reference in the Credit Agreement td $en is hereby deleted in its entirety.

30. The definition of “ Permitted Acquisitidnis hereby amended and restated in its entirefplésvys:

“ Permitted Acquisition” means any Proposed Acquisition that satisfies @d¢he following conditions precedent:

(a) with respect to any Proposed Acquisition whbeeAcquisition Consideration exceeds $15,000,080Administrative Agent
shall receive at least 10 Business Days’ priortemitnotice (or such shorter period as may be aabkpto the Administrative Agent) of
such Proposed Acquisition, which notice shall ideluwithout limitation, a reasonably detailed dggtimn of such Proposed Acquisition,
and, if any earnout is included as part of the Asitjon Consideration, such notice shall be accamgzhby a certificate of a Financial
Officer of the Company setting forth (i) the goaithi estimate of the aggregate amount require@ t@berved in accordance with GAAP
in respect of the earnout constituting Acquisitidonsideration, (ii) after giving effect to the eawhdescribed in clause (i), a detailed
calculation of the aggregate amount of all earnattser than the Earnout) that will be outstandisgf the closing date of the Proposed
Acquisition, and (iii) a determination as to whatheReserve will be required on the closing datthefProposed Acquisition pursuant to
Section 6.01(r);

(b) such Proposed Acquisition shall have been afgaldy the Proposed Acquisition Target's boardidadors (or equivalent);
(c) the Proposed Acquisition Target shall be endage Permitted Business;

(d) all governmental and material third-party apaile necessary in connection with such Proposedii&itipn shall have been
obtained and be in full force and effect;

(e) no additional Indebtedness or other liabilisaall be incurred, assumed or otherwise be refteoh a consolidated balance st
of the Company and Proposed Acquisition Target gfiteng effect to such Proposed Acquisition, exd@plLoans made hereunder,
(i) ordinary course trade payables, accrued exgenad (jii) Indebtedness permitted under Sectidh;6

(f) with respect to any Proposed Acquisition havamgAcquisition Consideration of at least $50,000,Ghe Borrower
Representative shall have delivered to the Adnmatiste Agent, in form and substance reasonablgfsatiory to the Administrative Age
and the Required Lenders and sufficiently in adeasfcsuch



Proposed Acquisition, such other financial inforimat financial analysis, documentation or otheoinfation relating to such Proposed
Acquisition as the Administrative Agent or any Lenghall reasonably request;

(g) with respect to any Proposed Acquisition haxangAcquisition Consideration of at least $50,000,Ghe Administrative Agent
shall be reasonably satisfied with the form andstarce of the acquisition agreement and with akomaterial agreements, instruments
and documents implementing such Acquisition or ategtin connection therewith, including opinionsitdficates and lien search resu
and such Acquisition shall be consummated in acoare with the terms of such documents and in campd with applicable law and
regulatory approvals;

(h) at or prior to the closing of such Proposed disigion, the Company (or the Restricted Subsidiaaking such Proposed
Acquisition) and the Proposed Acquisition Targetlshave executed such documents and taken suicmsets may be required under
Section 5.13;

(i) at the time of such Proposed Acquisition anéragiving effect thereto, (A) no Default shall leavccurred and be continuing,
(B) all representations and warranties containefriitle Il and in the other Loan Documents shadltrue and correct in all material
respects and (C) any Reserve required pursuargdiios 6.01(r) shall have been disclosed to théa@uhl Agents; and

(j) with respect to any Proposed Acquisition whigre Company (or the Restricted Subsidiary makirgh froposed Acquisition)
intends to sell, transfer or dispose of fixed assetccordance with Section 6.05(g), the Admiaisie Agent shall receive a certificate of
a Financial Officer of the Company (or of the Riestéd Subsidiary making such Proposed Acquisitatrieast 10 Business Days (or suck
shorter period as may be acceptable to the Admiatige Agent) prior to the closing of the Propogexdjuisition, (x) designating such
fixed assets as assets sold, transferred or didmdse accordance with clause (ii) of the provis&ection 6.05(g), (y) identifying such
assets with specificity, and (z) including a detditalculation of (I) the good faith estimate of Hggregate fair market value of such
assets at such time, (Il) the good faith estimatb@aggregate fair market value (computed ab@titme originally designated under this
paragraph (j)) of the fixed assets previously destigd in accordance with this paragraph (j), ahgttle aggregate fair market value
(computed as of the time originally designated unkis paragraph (j)) of all assets sold, transf@ior disposed of on or after the
Amendment No. 2 Effective Date in accordance wituse (ii) of the proviso to Section 6.05(g), sueltificate to be in form and
substance reasonably satisfactory to the Adminiggraégent.”

31. The definition of “ Permitted Business hereby amended by adding the phrase “so lenfpe@ majority of the operations of
such business is in the beverage industry” immeljiafter the phrase “or related line of business”.
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32. The definition of “ Permitted Investmeritss hereby amended by (A) replacing the referelnc®AA” contained therein with
the phrase “at least AA” and (B) replacing the refice to “Aaa” contained therein with the phrasdéast Aa”.

33. The definition of “ Permitted Margin Stotks hereby amended by inserting the phrase “AmesmrNo. 2” immediately before
the phrase “Effective Date”.

34. The definition “ PP&E Capand each reference in the Credit Agreement td $eiem is hereby deleted in its entirety.

35. The definition of * PP&E Componehis hereby amended by deleting the phrase “the PR&p at such time” from clause (a)
(ii) thereof and replacing it with the number “$300,000".

36. The definition of * PP&E Percentatjes hereby amended and restated in its entirefplésvs:

“ PP&E Percentagé shall mean, at the time of any determination @dog on or after the Amortization CommencementeD#te
percentage equal to one hundred percent (10@austhe lesser of (a) the percentage obtained by digitie number of full fiscal months of
the Company elapsed since the Amortization ComnraanéDate by eight-four (84) and (b) one hundredqma (100%).”

37. Clause (c) of the definition of “ PrepaymentBt/ is hereby amended by deleting the phrase “any alletment or “green
shoe” offered after the Effective Date in connettiath the New Equity or” therefrom.

38. Clause (i) of the definition of “* Swap Agreen&rs hereby amended by inserting the phragect(ding any commodity sold k
the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries directlyateendor solely for the purpose of being usedosumed to manufacture products of the
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries in the ordineogrse of such vendor’s business)” immediatelgrafie phrase “used or consumed in the
ordinary course of the Company’s business”.

39. The definition of “ Transactioriss hereby amended by deleting the phrase “, #ee@tion, delivery and performance of the
2010 Note Documents, including the issuance o201 Notes, the issuance of the New Equity, theofitiee proceeds of each of the
foregoing” therefrom.

40. The definition of * UK Security Agreemehis hereby amended by deleting the phrase “the Hateof'and replacing it with tr
date “August 17, 2010".

41. The definition of * U.S. Security Agreeméris hereby amended by (A) deleting the phrase tthie hereof” and replacing it
with the date “August 17, 2010"; (B) inserting thierase “amended on the date hereof by the U.SfiReafion Agreement, as” immediately
after the phrase “or any other Person, as” andn&)ting the word “further” immediately before thkrase “amended, restated or otherwise
modified from time to time”.



42. Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement is hetr@gnded by inserting the following new definitionghe appropriate
alphabetical order:

(a) “ Amendment No. 1 means Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dagdf April 19, 2012, among the Loan Parties
party thereto, the Lenders party thereto, and ttheniAistrative Agent.

(b) “ Amendment No. 2 means Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement, datedf July 19, 2012, among the Loan Parties
party thereto, the Lenders party thereto, and thents.

(c) “ Amendment No. 2 Effective Datehas the meaning assigned to such term in Amentien?2.

(d) “ Borrower DTTP Filing’ means an HM Revenue & Customs Form DTTP2 dulymeted and filed by the relevant UK
Borrower, which (a) where it relates to a Treatyder that is a Treaty Lender on the day on whitchAlgreement is entered into, contains the
scheme reference number and jurisdiction of taixleeee provided by the Treaty Lender to the UK Baer and the Administrative Agent, ¢
(i) where the UK Borrower becomes a UK Borrowertloa day on which this Agreement is entered intfijaégl with HM Revenue & Customs
within 30 days of the date of this Agreement; gryihere the UK Borrower becomes a UK Borrower beder after the day on which this
Agreement is entered into, is filed with HM Reverdu€ustoms within 30 days of the date on which tHEtBorrower becomes a UK
Borrower; or (b) where it relates to a party thetdmes a Treaty Lender hereunder pursuant to dagmwssnt and Assumption or a Participant,
contains the scheme reference number and jurisdicti tax residence of such party and is provideduzh party to the UK Borrower and the
Administrative Agent, and (i) where the UK Borrowgr UK Borrower on the effective date of the valat Assignment and Assumption or
participation, is filed with HM Revenue & Customglnin 30 days of the effective date of the relevaforementioned document; or (ii) where
the UK Borrower becomes a UK Borrower hereundesrafie effective date of the relevant Assignmext Assumption or participation, is fil
with HM Revenue & Customs within 30 days of theedam which that UK Borrower becomes a UK Borrower.

(e) “ Canadian Borroweérmean the Company.

(f) “ Canadian Reaffirmation Agreemehieans the Canadian Reaffirmation Agreement anéidment No. 1 to Canadian
Security Agreement, dated as of the Amendment Nefféctive Date, by and between the Loan Partietyphereto and the Administrative
Collateral Agent, for the benefit of the Adminigiva Agent, the Collateral Agents and the Lenders.

(9) “HMRC DT Treaty Passport scherhmeans the Board of H.M. Revenue and Customs Rouiakation Treaty Passport

scheme.

(h) “ Reaffirmation Agreementsmeans the Canadian Reaffirmation Agreement, tkeRéaffirmation Agreement and the
U.S. Reaffirmation Agreement.
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(i) “ UK Reaffirmation Agreement means the UK Reaffirmation Agreement, dated ahefAmendment No. 2 Effective
Date, by and between the Loan Parties party thamddhe UK Security Trustee.

() “ U.S. Reaffirmation Agreemeritmeans the U.S. Reaffirmation Agreement and Amegrdmlo. 1 to U.S. Security
Agreement, dated as of the Amendment No. 2 EffedDate, by and between the Loan Parties partyttharel the Administrative Collateral
Agent, for the benefit of the Administrative Agetite Collateral Agents and the Lenders.

43. Section 1.04 of the Credit Agreement is her@ignded by adding the following sentence to theoésdich Section:

“Notwithstanding the foregoing, all financial statamts delivered hereunder shall be prepared, arfishaticial covenants contained hel
shall be calculated, without giving effect to amgotion under the Statement of Financial Accounfitgndards Codification 825-10-25
(previously referred to as Statement of Financied@unting Standards No. 159), or any other Accaogn8tandards Codification or Financial
Accounting Standard having a similar result or @ffeermitting or requiring a Person to value iitghcial liabilities or Indebtedness at the fair
value thereof.”

44. Clause (b) of Section 2.06 of the Credit Agreetiis hereby amended by (A) inserting the worthédt immediately before the
phrase “electronic communication” and (B) deletihg phrase “9:00 am” and replacing it with the gleréd:00 a.m.”.

45. Clause (c) of Section 2.06 of the Credit Agreptis hereby amended by adding a semi-colon imaelgliafter the phrase “(ii)
the date that is five Business Days prior to theuvity Date”.

46. Clause (k) of Section 2.06 of the Credit Agreatis hereby deleted in its entirety.

47. Clause (e) of Section 2.09 of the Credit Agreetis hereby amended by (A) inserting “;” immedigtbefore the first
occurrence of the word_* providédand (B) deleting the word “and” immediately beddhe phrase “ providedurther” and replacing it with

w.n
y .

48. The first proviso to clause (c) of Section 2ofthe Credit Agreement is hereby amended by iimgethe phrase “Amendment
No. 2" immediately before the phrase “Effective Date eads $1,000,000".

49. The last proviso to clause (c) of Section aflthe Credit Agreement is hereby amended by aejetach reference to “Section
6.09(b)(xi)" and replacing it with a reference ®ettion 6.09(b)(vii)”.
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50. A new clause (h) of Section 2.17 of the Créditeement is hereby inserted, which reads as fallow

“(h) Additional United Kingdom Withholding Tax Matts. (i) Subject to (ii) and (iii) below, a Treaty Le®r and each UK Borrower
which makes a payment to which that Treaty Lenslentitied shall co-operate in completing any pdocal formalities necessary for that UK
Borrower to obtain authorization to make that pagtweithout withholding or deduction for Taxes impdsunder the laws of the United
Kingdom; (ii)(A) a Treaty Lender which becomes &dty Lender on the day on which this Agreemenhiered into that holds a passport
under the HMRC DT Treaty Passport scheme, and whishes that scheme to apply to this Agreement| phavide its scheme reference
number and its jurisdiction of tax residence toBlmerower and the Administrative Agent; and (B)r@aty Lender which becomes a Treaty
Lender hereunder after the day on which this Agedris entered into that holds a passport undedMBC DT Treaty Passport scheme, and
which wishes that scheme to apply to this Agreensdll provide its scheme reference number arjdrtdiction of tax residence to the UK
Borrower and the Administrative Agent, and, havitogne so, that Treaty Lender shall be under no éurthligation pursuant to paragraph
(9) and (h)(i) above; (iii) nothing in paragraphdbove shall require a Treaty Lender to: (A) reggisinder the HMRC DT Treaty Passport
scheme; (B) apply the HMRC DT Treaty Passport sehenany Borrowings if it has so registered; or fi@) Treaty forms if it has included an
indication to the effect that it wishes the HMRC Diieaty Passport scheme to apply to this Agreeiestcordance with paragraph (h)(ii)
above and the UK Borrower making that payment leacomplied with its obligations under paragrapf{ifh below; (iv) if a Treaty Lender
has confirmed its scheme reference number andritgljction of tax residence in accordance withagaaph (h)(ii) above the relevant UK
Borrower shall make a Borrower DTTP filing, and wén¢l) that Borrower DTTP Filing has been rejedigddM Revenue & Customs; or
(2) HM Revenue & Customs has not given the UK Basoauthority to make payments to that Treaty Lendthout a deduction for tax
within 60 days of the date of the Borrower DTTHrig| and, in each case, the UK Borrower has ndtifieat Treaty Lender in writing, that
Treaty Lender and the UK Borrower shall co-openateompleting any additional procedural formalitieescessary for that UK Borrower to
obtain authorization to make that payment withoithlolding or deduction for Taxes imposed underl#ives of the United Kingdom; (v) if a
Lender has not confirmed its scheme reference nuarkjurisdiction of tax residence in accordandh waragraph (g)(ii) above, no UK
Borrower shall make a Borrower DTTP Filing or fday other form relating to the HMRC DT Treaty Passgcheme in respect of that
Lender's Commitment(s) or its participation in dmyan unless the Lender otherwise agrees; (vi) aBdkower shall, promptly on making a
Borrower DTTP Filing, deliver a copy of that BorremDTTP Filing to the Administrative Agent for detiry to the relevant Treaty Lender; ¢
(vii) a Treaty Lender shall notify the UK Borrowand Administrative Agent if it determines in itdesdiscretion that it is ceases to be entitled
to claim the benefits of an income tax treaty taolihthe United Kingdom is a party with respect &yments made by the UK Borrower
hereunder.”

51. Clause (h) of Section 2.17 of the Credit Agreehis hereby renumbered as clause (i).

52. Clause (i) of Section 2.17 of the Credit Agreeiris hereby renumbered as clause (j).

53. Clause (j) of Section 2.17 of the Credit Agreeiris hereby renumbered as clause (k).
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54. Clause (k) of Section 2.17 of the Credit Agreatris hereby renumbered as clause (l).
55. Clause (I) of Section 2.17 of the Credit Agreeiris hereby deleted in its entirety.
56. Section 3.04 of the Credit Agreement is hemignded and restated in its entirety as follows:

“Section 3.04. Financial Condition; No Material Agstée Change

(a) The Company has heretofore furnished to theleenthe Company’s consolidated balance sheettatairents of income,
stockholders equity and cash flows (i) as of andte fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, repandaly PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
independent public accountants, and (ii) as offanthe fiscal quarters and the portions of thedigrear ended March 31, 2012, certified by its
chief financial officer. Such financial statemedescribed in the preceding sentence present fairbl] material respects, the financial position
and results of operations and cash flows of the @201y and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of satdsdand for such periods in accordance
with GAAP, subject to year-end audit adjustments e absence of footnotes in the case of therstates referred to in clause (ii) above.

(b) No event, change or condition has occurredhhathad, or could reasonably be expected to bhaViaterial Adverse Effect, since
December 31, 2011.”

57. Clause (a) of Section 3.06 of the Credit Agreenis hereby amended by deleting the phrase t{3he Effective Date relating
to the Cliffstar Acquisition or (y)”.

58. The last sentence of clause (b) of Section 8f10e Credit Agreement is hereby amended by ibel¢he reference to the
defined term “Effective Date” and replacing it wiltreference to the defined term “Amendment Noffédiive Date”.

59. Clause (a) of Section 3.13 of the Credit Agreenis hereby amended by (A) deleting the phraaeti®f the Cliffstar
Acquisition and” and (B) changing each referen@zdhn to the defined term “Effective Date” to aeefnce to the defined term “Amendment
No. 2 Effective Dat”.

60. Section 3.14 of the Credit Agreement is herignded by (A) deleting the reference in the sesentence thereof to the
defined term “Effective Date” and replacing it wihreference to the defined term “Amendment Noffédiive Date” and (B) inserting the
phrase “or successor insurance policies” immedjidiefore the phrase “have been paid” in the sesentence thereof.

61. Section 3.15 of the Credit Agreement is hebgnded by (A) deleting the reference “(a)” andd8leting the phrase “after
giving effect to the Cliffstar Acquisition, the Trsactions and the Restructuring”.
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62. Section 3.17 of the Credit Agreement is hebgnded by deleting the reference in the firsteserd therein to the defined te
“Effective Date” and replacing it with a referentcethe defined term “Amendment No. 2 Effective Date

63. Section 3.21 of the Credit Agreement is heraignded by deleting the reference therein to tfinetbterm “Effective Date”
and replacing it with a reference to the definethttAmendment No. 2 Effective Date”.

64. Section 3.22 of the Credit Agreement is heignded by (A) deleting each reference thereihdalefined term “Effective
Date” and replacing it with a reference to the edi term “Amendment No. 2 Effective Date” and (BYlimg the phrase “, including the
Unrestricted Subsidiaries” immediately before theage “listed on Schedule 1.01(c)".

65. Section 3.23 of the Credit Agreement is hemignded and restated in its entirety as follows:
“Section 3.23. [Reserved.]”
66. Section 3.24 of the Credit Agreement is herbgnded by (A) deleting the reference “(i)” immeeli before the phrase “as of
July 3, 2010” and (B) deleting the phrase “andifiitonnection with the Cott Acquisition and thesRecturing outstanding on the Effective
Date,”.

67. Section 3.25 of the Credit Agreement is hemignded and restated in its entirety as follows:

“Section 3.25, Fixed Charge Coverage Rafitne Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio determined &aoth 31, 2012 was greater than 1.1 to
1

68. Clause (e) of Section 5.01 of the Credit Agreenis hereby amended by adding the phrase “textent customarily provided
with respect to similarly situated companies byhsaccounting firm,” immediately before the phrasericurrently with any delivery of
financial statements under clause (a) above”.

69. Clause (g) of Section 5.01 of the Credit Agrertis hereby amended by (A) deleting the phrase iif the case of July 2010,
on or before August 31, 2010)” and (B) deletingreagference therein to the number “$40,000,000" @pthcing it with a reference to the
number “$34,375,000".

70. Clause (h) of Section 5.01 of the Credit Agrertis hereby amended by deleting the phraseif(dhe case of July 2010, on or
before August 31, 2010)".

71. Clause (i) of Section 5.01 of the Credit Agreairis hereby amended by deleting the phraseif(¢he case of July 2010, on or
before August 31, 2010)".

72. Clause (0) of Section 5.01 of the Credit Agreehis hereby amended by deleting the referentigetaniform resource locator
“http://www.cott.com/investors/ filings/en.htm” amdplacing it with a reference to the uniform reseuocator “http://www.cott.com/en/for-
investors/overview”.
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73. Clause (d) of Section 5.02 of the Credit Agrernis hereby amended by adding the phrase “atfegom-payment of rent or
other amounts due in excess of one months’ retfigtoelevant landlord or warehouseman or any otteerial default” immediately after the
phrase “(which shall be delivered within five Busis Days after receipt thereof)”.

74. Section 5.08 of the Credit Agreement is herignded and restated in its entirety as follows:

“Section 5.08. Use of Proceedshe proceeds of the Loans will be used onlyq(ipay fees and expenses in connection with the
Transactions and (ii) for working capital needs gaderal corporate purposes. No part of the pracedny Loan and no Letter of Credit will
be used, whether directly or indirectly, for anygmse that entails a violation of any of the Retjoles of the Board, including Regulations T
and X.”

75. Section 5.11 of the Credit Agreement is hemignded and restated in its entirety as follows:

“Section 5.11, Appraisals and Field ExaminatioAs$ any time that the Administrative Agent andamry Collateral Agent requests, the
Loan Parties will provide the Administrative Ageartd the Collateral Agents with appraisals or upgltitereof of their Inventory, equipment
and real property from an appraiser selected agdgad by the Administrative Agent, and prepared basis satisfactory to the Administrat
Agent and each Collateral Agent, such appraisalsupdates to include, without limitation, infornatirequired by applicable law and
regulations, with all such appraisals and updagésgoat the Borrowers’ cost and expense excepirgied in the following proviso; provided
however, that (A) in the case of appraisals of Inventdiyif no Event of Default has occurred and is éoming and Aggregate Availability hi
at all times during the preceding twelve fiscal t@rbeen greater than or equal to the greater)aivgnty percent (20%) of the aggregate
amount of all Commitments at such time and (z) 838,000, one such appraisal per calendar yearlshall the sole expense of the Loan
Parties, (ii) if no Event of Default has occurredlas continuing and Aggregate Availability hasay time during the preceding twelve fiscal
months been less than the greater of (y) twentggmer(20%) of the aggregate amount of all Commitmahsuch time and (z) $55,000,000,
two such appraisals per calendar year shall beeagdle expense of the Loan Parties and (iii) iEaent of Default has occurred and is
continuing, each such appraisal shall be at theeqgbense of the Loan Parties and (B) in the chappmaisals of equipment and real property,
(i) if no Event of Default has occurred and is @ouning, one such appraisal in each of calendar 845 and every third calendar year
thereafter shall be at the sole expense of the Raaties, (ii) if an Event of Default has occureettl is continuing, each such appraisal shall be
at the sole expense of the Loan Parties and fipyaisals of parcels of real property not identifeen Schedule 1.01(gjall not be at the
expense of the Loan Parties, except to the extmit appraisals are required by any Requiremengef. In addition, at any time that the
Administrative Agent and/or any Collateral Agenuests, the Loan Parties will provide the Admiristte Agent and the Collateral Agents
(and any third party retained by any of them) veititess to their properties, books, records andmmes to conduct field examinations, to
ensure the adequacy of Borrowing Base Collatemlralated reporting and control systems; providedwever, that (i) if no Event of Default
has occurred and is continuing and Aggregate Abgitia has at all times during the preceding tweliseal months been greater than or equal
to the greater of (y) twenty percent (20%) of tggragate amount of all Commitments at such
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time and (z) $55,000,000, one such field examinagbier calendar year shall be at the sole expentfe dfoan Parties, (ii) if no Event of
Default has occurred and is continuing and Aggeedatilability has at any time during the precediwglve fiscal months been less than the
greater of (y) twenty percent (20%) of the aggregahount of all Commitments at such time and (&),®30,000, two such field examinations
per calendar year shall be at the sole expengedfdan Parties and (iii) if an Event of Defaulstwecurred and is continuing, each such field
examination shall be at the sole expense of the [Rzaties.”

76. Section 5.12 of the Credit Agreement is heignded and restated in its entirety as follows:

“Section 5.12, Depository Bank€&ach Loan Party (other than the members of theMexican Group) will maintain Chase as its
principal depository bank, including for the maim@ace of operating, administrative, cash manageroeléction activity, and other deposit
accounts for the conduct of its business, provitiat) notwithstanding the foregoing, each LoanyPardy maintain deposit accounts at other
financial institutions provided such institutionave delivered deposit account control agreementsirfular agreements) satisfactory to the
Administrative Collateral Agent or UK CollateralUstee, as the case may be, to the extent requickt the relevant Security Agreement.
Following the Amendment No. 2 Effective Date, Gttir LLC shall close each Cliffstar Deposit Accoutithin a period of time reasonably
acceptable to the Administrative Agent.”

77. Clause (c) of Section 5.13 is hereby amendeatloyng the phrase “, but not limited to,” immedigtbefore the phrase “the
filing and recording of financing statements”.

78. Section 5.15 of the Credit Agreement is herignded and restated in its entirety as follows:

“Section 5.15, Mexican Pegtlosing Covenantslf Aggregate Availability is, or at any time hbsen, less than $50,000,000, then, upon
the request of the Required Lenders, each Borrewibrand will cause its Restricted Subsidiariesagecute and deliver the documents and
complete the tasks set forth in item 1 and AnnéxeB and C of Schedule 5.15 within 30 days of sterfuest (or within such longer periods as
may be agreed to by the Administrative Agent archeé2ollateral Agent, each in its sole discretion).”

79. Clause (ii) of paragraph (e) of Section 6.0thefCredit Agreement is hereby amended by (A)rtivethe phrase “non-Loan
Party” immediately before the first occurrencets# tvord “Subsidiary” and (B) deleting the phrasefi®wer or to any other” and replacing it
with the phrase “non-Loan Party”.

80. Section 5.16 of the Credit Agreement is hemaignded by deleting the colon immediately afterpth@se “by wire transfer all
collected funds in the aggregate held in the dépasiounts of”.

81. Clause (g) of Section 6.01 of the Credit Agreehis hereby amended by (A) deleting the referémt¢be number “90”
contained therein and replacing it with the numii&0” and (B) deleting the phrase “this clause {®grefrom and replacing it with the phrase
“this clause (g)".

16



82. Clause (h) of Section 6.01 of the Credit Agrernis hereby amended by deleting the phrase “betérom subclause
(iii) thereof and replacing it with the word “becein

83. Clause (k) of Section 6.01 of the Credit Agreatris hereby amended by deleting the phrase ¢thisse (i)” therefrom and
replacing it with the phrase “this clause (k)".

84. Clause (l) of Section 6.01 of the Credit Agreairis hereby amended by deleting the referentteetoumber “$5,000,000”
contained therein and replacing it with the nunit$40,000,000".

85. Clause (p) of Section 6.01 of the Credit Agreehis hereby amended by deleting the word “and”.

86. Clause (q) of Section 6.01 of the Credit Agrernis hereby amended by deleting the period ag¢ideof such paragraph and
replacing it with the phrase “; and”.

87. Section 6.01 of the Credit Agreement is herignded by adding a new clause (r) at the endobf Saction:

“(r) earnouts (other than the Earnout) constitu#igjuisition Consideration in connection with Petted Acquisitions in an aggregate
amount not to exceed $25,000,000 at any time oudstg; providedhat, so long as the aggregate amount of all saatoats outstanding at
such time exceeds $10,000,000, a Reserve shadithklished by the Collateral Agents in an amoungétp the difference of (y) the aggregate
amount of all such earnouts outstanding at sucé, tam determined by the Administrative Agent irPigsmitted Discretion minus
(z) $10,000,000.”

88. Clause (d) of Section 6.02 of the Credit Agreehis hereby amended by deleting the referentgetaumber “90” contained
therein and replacing it with the number “180".

89. Clause (m) of Section 6.02 of the Credit Agreehis hereby amended by deleting the word “and”.

90. Clause (n) of Section 6.02 of the Credit Agrernis hereby amended by deleting the period ag¢ideof such paragraph and
replacing it with the phrase “; and”.

91. Section 6.02 of the Credit Agreement is heaibgnded by adding a new clause (0) at the endchf Saction:

“(o) sales, transfers, dispositions and non-reatastoring of accounts receivable permitted purst@paragraphs (c) and (o) of
Section 6.05.”

92. Clause (a) of Section 6.04 of the Credit Agreenis hereby amended by (A) adding the refere(igeimmediately before the
phrase “Permitted Investments” and (B) adding tage “and (ii) so long as no Loans are outstandirdgr this Agreement, securities rated
BBB or higher by S&P (or an equivalent rating by#rer nationally recognized rating agency) in agragate amount not to exceed
$30,000,000 at any time outstanding” immediatetgrahe words “Permitted Perfection Limitations”.
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93. Clause (b) of Section 6.04 of the Credit Agrernis hereby amended by replacing the word “Loavigi the word “loans”.

94. Clause (c) of Section 6.04 of the Credit Agreetis hereby amended by deleting the referentieetoumber “$100,000,000”
contained therein and replacing it with a referetocéne number “$75,000,000".

95. Clause (d) of Section 6.04 of the Credit Agreehis hereby amended by deleting the referentigetoumber “$100,000,000”
contained therein and replacing it with a refereiocéne number “$75,000,000".

96. Clause (e) of Section 6.04 of the Credit Agreenis hereby amended by deleting the referentieetaumber “$100,000,000”
contained therein and replacing it with a referetocéne number “$75,000,000".

97. Clause (I) of Section 6.04 of the Credit Agreeiris hereby amended and restated in its entefpllows:

“(I) investments by the Company and its Restri@edsidiaries in the form of Permitted Acquisitiopsvidedthat the Company and its
Restricted Subsidiaries may not make any Permitslisition unless (x) both Borrowers’ Aggregateaflability on the date of such
investment and Borrowers’ average Aggregate Avditglover the prior thirty day period ending oncsudate (in each case after giving effect
to such Permitted Acquisition) is at least $75,000,and (y) the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio, détedras of the last day of the most recent
fiscal quarter for which financial statements haeen or should have been delivered pursuant taoBet01(b) or Section 5.01(a) or (b), for
the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters egain such last day, is at least 1.15 to 1.0;”

98. Clause (n) of Section 6.04 of the Credit Agrernis hereby amended by (A) adding the phrasedemptions or exchanges”
immediately after the phrase “investments in thenfof purchases” and (B) replacing the phrase ‘iBest6.09(b)(ix) through (xii)” with the
phrase “Sections 6.09(b)(vii) and (ix)".

99. Clause (0) of Section 6.04 of the Credit Agrernis hereby amended by (A) adding the phrased,investments in the form
equipment of,” immediately after the phrase “loaadyances and extensions of credit by” and (B)toigjehe phrase “Section 6.01(I)” and
replacing it the phrase “Section 6.01(n).

100. Clause (p) of Section 6.04 of the Credit Agrent is hereby amended by inserting the phrase éraftdr the Amendment
No. 2 Effective Dat” immediately after the first occurrence of the gg& “such loans and advances” in each of subcl€B3e&C) and (D) of
such Clause (p).
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101. Clause (s) of Section 6.04 of the Credit Agreet is hereby amended and restated in its entiefgllows:
“(s) [reserved;]”

102. Clause (t) of Section 6.04 of the Credit Agneat is hereby amended by deleting the last oceceref the word “and”
contained therein.

103. Clause (u) of Section 6.04 of the Credit Agrent is hereby amended and restated in its entiefgllows:

“(u) investments by the Company in Equity Interéstsaand the making of capital contributions to, Bternational or, if BCB
International no longer exists, BCB European, piedithat (A) contemporaneously with such investmeitsdilong as BCB International and
BCB European continue to exist, BCB Internationakes an investment in the Equity Interests of, akes a capital contribution to, BCB
European or, if BCB European no longer exists, B@Brnational makes an investment in the Equitgrests of, or makes a capital
contribution to, a Loan Party and (i) if BCB Eusmm continues to exist, BCB European makes antimesd in the Equity Interests of, or
makes a capital contribution to, a Loan Partyhmdase of clauses (i) and (ii) in an amount etjuiie investment made by the Company in
BCB International, (B) any such Equity Interestidh®y a Loan Party shall be pledged pursuant tagmicable Security Agreement (subjec
the limitations applicable to common stock of cerfareign Subsidiaries referred to in Section 5ab8 subject to Permitted Perfection
Limitations), and (C) no investments permitted urttiés clause (u) shall be permitted to be madegttime an Event of Default has occurred
and is continuing; providedfurther, that no Borrower or Subsidiary may make any itmest in Equity Interests of, or makes a capital
contribution to, any member of the Cott Mexican @xan reliance on this clause (u);”

104. Section 6.04 of the Credit Agreement is heaghgnded by adding the following new clauses aetiteof such Section:
“(v) Guarantees by Loan Parties of obligationsthieo Loan Parties that do not constitute Indebtssinend
(w) other loans, advances and investments notdeezkan aggregate amount of $5,000,000 at anyotits¢éanding;”.

105. The proviso at the end of Section 6.04 ofGhedit Agreement is hereby amended by (A) deletimgphrase “clause (p)” and
replacing it with the phrase “clauses (p) and (@Dt (B) deleting the phrase “in accordance withiBe&.15” and replacing it with the phrase
“as set forth on Schedule 5.15".

106. Clause (b) of Section 6.05 of the Credit Agrent is hereby amended by deleting the phrase 6a04.

107. Clause (c) of Section 6.05 of the Credit Agrest is hereby amended by adding the phrase “(thlersales, transfers and
dispositions of accounts receivable permitted updeagraph (o) of this Section 6.05)” immediatdigiathe phrasecompromise, settlement
collection thereof”.
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108. Clause (d) of Section 6.05 of the Credit Agrest is hereby amended by (A) deleting the phrasd {t)” and replacing it with
the phrase “, ()" and (B) inserting the phrased‘éw)” immediately before the phrase “of Sectio@4.

109. Clause (e) of Section 6.05 of the Credit Agreet is hereby amended by (A) deleting the refexé(iy’ at the beginning of
such clause and (B) deleting the phrase “anddig§ and leaseback transactions permitted by Se@tas{ii)”.

110. The proviso to clause (g) of Section 6.05hefCredit Agreement is hereby amended and restatedentirety as follows:

“ providedthat the aggregate fair market value of all assetts, transferred or otherwise disposed of in thédd States, the United
Kingdom or Canada in reliance upon this paragrgpliiY other than the assets designated in accoedaith clause (ii) of this proviso, shall
exceed (x) $10,000,000 during any fiscal year ef@@mpany and (y) $20,000,000 during the term isfAlgreement, commencing on the
Amendment No. 2 Effective Date and (ii) solely witispect to fixed assets acquired as part of aiRedw\cquisition and disclosed to the
Administrative Agent in accordance with clauseofjfhe definition of Permitted Acquisition, shabitnexceed $20,000,000 during the term of
this Agreement, commencing on the Amendment Ndféckve Date;”

111. Clause (k) of Section 6.05 of the Credit Agneat is hereby amended by (A) deleting the phraash and” contained therein
and (B) inserting the phrase “and dispositionsw&stments permitted by Section 6.04(a)(ii)” imnadelly after the phrase “Permitted
Investments”.

112. Clauses (l) and (m) of Section 6.05 of thed@régreement are hereby amended and restateaiinehtirety as follows:
“(I) [reserved;]
(m) [reserved;]”

113. Clause (q) of Section 6.05 of the Credit Agrent is hereby amended by deleting the last oceceref the word “and”
contained therein and replacing it with a semicolon

114. The proviso at the end of Section 6.05 ofGhedit Agreement is hereby amended by (A) deldtirgreference to paragraph
“(e)(ii)” and replacing it with a reference to thbrase “(d), (e)”; (B) deleting the reference togugaph “(1)” and (C) deleting the reference to
paragraph “(m)”.

115. Section 6.06 of the Credit Agreement is heibgnded by deleting the reference to the numtrc8ntained therein and
replacing it with the number “180".

116. Paragraph (a) of Section 6.09 of the CredieAment is hereby amended by (A) deleting the phtiasan aggregate amount
not exceeding (x) $5,000,000 during any fiscal tpraor (y) $10,000,000 during any fiscal year &f @ompany as long as, in each case”
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from clause (iii) thereof and replacing it with thirase “as long as”, (B) inserting the words “affizing effect to such payment” immediately
after the phrase “the Borrowers shall have bothrAggte Availability on the date of such paymentteime such phrase appears in such
paragraph, (C) deleting each reference thereingmtimber “$100,000,000” and replacing it with f@rence to the number “$75,000,000",
(D) deleting each reference therein to the ratid tb 1.0” and replacing it with a reference to theo “1.15 to 1.0, (E) deleting the phrase
“provided that no Event of Default has occurred antthen continuing,” from clause (iv) thereof, @®leting the phrase “in an aggregate
amount not exceeding $50,000,000 during the terthisfAgreementfrom clause (iv) thereof and (G) adding the followiphrase at the end
the proviso to such Paragraph after the phrasérifalised to its immediate parent”:

“, unless, solely in the case of any RestrictednfRayt made to any Interim Holdco, the Administrathgent and the Co-Collateral Agent
otherwise consent in writing, in their sole dis@et prior to such Restricted Payment”.

117. Subsection (vi) of clause (b) of Section @0¢he Credit Agreement is hereby amended by dwjdtie phrase “not exceeding
$1,000,000 in any calendar year” and replacingtit the phrase “not exceeding (i) $1,000,000 fer pleriod from the Amendment No. 2
Effective Date through December 31, 2012, andb(iip00,000 in any calendar year thereafter”.

118. Subsection (vii) of clause (b) of Section God%he Credit Agreement is hereby amended andtesbin its entirety as follows:

“(vii) the Company or any of its Restricted Subaiiks may, from time to time, (a) voluntarily puasie 2009 Notes or 2010 Notes from
one or more holders thereof, (b) voluntarily redeseime or all of the 2009 Notes or 2010 Notes imetance with the 2009 Indenture or the
2010 Indenture and/or (c) prepay Indebtednessandsig in connection with the Sidel Water Capitahke during the term of this Agreement,
in each case as long as (A) no Event of Defaultoleasrred and is continuing or would result afteing effect to such repurchase, redemption
or prepayment, (B) the Borrowers shall have botlgragate AvailabilityminusDisqualified Payables of at least $75,000,000,rd@teed both
on the date of such repurchase, redemption or pnegrat (and after giving effect thereto and, oneerage basis for the thirty day period
ending on (x) in the case of repurchases and retiemspunder clauses (a) and (b) of this subsedtidy the date the Company or such
Restricted Subsidiary initially offers to make suepurchase or redemption or (y) in the case gigmments under clause (c) of this subsectio
(vii), the date of such prepayment, in each caseramg that such repurchase, redemption or prepatyme the case may be, was made on th
first day of such period), and (C) the Fixed Chatgeerage Ratio, determined as of the last dagefriost recent fiscal quarter for which
financial statements have been or should have theldrered pursuant to Section 4.01(b) or Secti@i @) or (b), for the period of four
consecutive fiscal quarters ending on such lastidayo less than 1.25 to 1.0;”

119. Subsections (ix), (x) and (xi) of clause (bpection 6.09 of the Credit Agreement are hereddgtdd in their entirety and the
succeeding subsections of such clause (b) areyhezabhmbered in numerical order beginning with gakisn (ix).
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120. Subsection (ix) of clause (b) of Section @0fhe Credit Agreement is hereby amended by (8giting the phrase “, and after
giving effect thereto,” immediately after the pheddetermined both on the date of such redemptapyrchase or prepayment” in subclause
(B) of such subsection and (B) deleting the phtasea pro forma basis” from subclause (C) of sugbsection.

121. The proviso at the end of clause (b) of Sadi®9 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amende@pwndding the word “,
prepayments” immediately after the phrase “in catina with any redemptions, purchases”; (B) delptime word “Sections” and replacing it
with the word “Section” and (C) deleting the phréggough 6.09(b)(xiii)".

122. Section 6.10 of the Credit Agreement is heiabgnded by (A) deleting the phrase “6.04(c)” tfrera and replacing it with
the phrase “6.04(b), (c)” in clause (c) of suchti®ec (B) deleting the phrase “(p) or (r)” therafiand replacing it with the phrase “(I), (p), (q).
(r), (u) or (v), or, solely to the extent such saations are with an Affiliate of a Loan Party, Sats 6.04(0) or (t),” in clause (c) of such
Section, (C) deleting the phrase “6.01(e), (f)lgt &nd replacing it with the phrase “6.01(a), (@), (e), (f), (k) or (m)” in clause (d) of such
Section, (D) inserting the phrase “or payment speet of Indebtedness” immediately after the phtasg Restricted Payment” in clause (e) of
such Section, (E) inserting the word “and” at thd ef clause (g) of such Section and (F) deletivgphrase “and (i) capital contributions
contemplated by the Restructuring”.

123. Section 6.13 of the Credit Agreement is heaghgnded by (A) deleting the reference to the nurf$20,000,000” and
replacing it with a reference to the number “$29,5900", (B) deleting the phrase “on or after SegienB0, 2010” and (C) deleting the phrase
“after September 30, 2010".

124. Clause (a) of Section 6.15 of the Credit Agreet is hereby amended by (A) amending and regtatause (i)(A) thereof to
read: “(x) in the case of BCB International, theulfg Interests of BCB European or, if BCB Europeanlonger exists, the Equity Interests of &
Loan Party and (y) in the case of BCB EuropeanFEipaity Interests of Cott Retail Brands Limitediida(B) amending and restating clause (i)
(D) thereof to read: “to the extent (and for thmited period) permitted under Section 6.04(u), @montributions and proceeds of investment:
in Equity Interests”.

125. Clause (b) of Section 6.15 of the Credit Agrent is hereby amended by replacing the word “Hidhe beginning of such
paragraph with the phrase “Without the prior writtemnsent of the Administrative Agent and the Cdla@eral Agent in their sole discretion,
the”.

126. Clause (i) of paragraph (a) of Section 9.0iei®by amended by (A) deleting the name “Michaelriderman” and replacing it
with the name “Jason Ausher” and (B) deleting #fenence to facsimile number “813.881.1923" andaeipg it with facsimile number
“813.881.1914".

127. Item 4 of Schedule 5.15 of the Credit Agreeniehereby amended by (A) deleting the phrase tler than ten days
following the Effective Date, the” and replacingiith the word “The”; (B) deleting the phrasAs soon as practicable and in any event no
than thirty days following the Effective Date” a(@d) deleting the phrase “No later than sixty dayiofving the Effective Date”.

22



128. Schedule 5.15 of the Credit Agreement is heashended by (A) deleting items 1 through 3 anch&® and 6 therefrom and
(B) renumbering the reference to item “4” as anesfiee to item “1”.

129. Clause (d) of Section 9.02 of the Credit Agrert is hereby amended by deleting the comma imatedgiafter the phrase
“then the Borrowers may elect to replace a Non-@ntisg Lender as a Lender party to this Agreemant replacing it with a semi-colon.

130. Section 9.08 of the Credit Agreement is heaabgnded by deleting the comma immediately afieptirase “The applicable
Lender shall promptly notify the Borrower Represgine and the Administrative Agent of such setafhipplication” and replacing it with a
semi-colon.

131. Section 10.11 of the Credit Agreement is hesghended by deleting each occurrence of the plitlaselate hereof” and
replacing it with the date “August 17, 2010".

Il. Conditions Precedent to Effectiveneskhis Amendment shall become effective as of ifst date (the * Amendment No. 2 Effective
Date”) on which each of the following conditions precedeate been satisfie

1. The Administrative Agent (or its counsel) shale received (i) from each party hereto eithergdApunterpart of this
Amendment signed on behalf of such party or (B}temi evidence satisfactory to the AdministrativeeAg(which may include facsimile or pdf
transmission of a signed signature page of this idneent) that such party has signed a counterpahiofmendment, and (ii) duly executed
copies (or facsimile or pdf copies) of the Reaffitron Agreements (as defined in the Amended Crgglieement) and such other certificates,
documents, instruments and agreements as the Astraiiivve Agent shall reasonably request in conoaatiith the transactions contemplated
by this Amendment.

2. The Administrative Agent shall have receivedréten opinion of the United States Loan Partiexinsel, addressed to the
Administrative Agent, the Disbursement Agent, thadl&@&eral Agents, the Issuing Banks and the Lenatefsrm and substance acceptable tc
Administrative Agent.

3. The Administrative Agent shall have receivediespf the most recent financial statements, ptes and reports required to
delivered pursuant to Section 5.01 of the Crediteggnent.

4. The Administrative Agent shall have receiveda(dertificate of each Loan Party, dated the Amesrdrilo. 2 Effective Date and
executed by its Secretary, Assistant Secretaryir@cr, which shall (A) certify the resolutionsitd Board of Directors, members or other
body authorizing the execution, delivery and perfance of the Loan Documents to which it is a pdBY,identify by name and title and bear
the signatures of the Financial Officers and ammgobfficers of such Loan Party authorized to slgmLoan Documents to which it is a party,
and (C) contain appropriate attachments, incluthegcertificate or articles
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of incorporation or organization of each Loan Paidgether with all amendments thereto, certifigdHe relevant authority of the jurisdiction
of organization of such Loan Party and a true ardect copy of its byaws, memorandum and articles of association oratipg), manageme
or partnership agreement (or other equivalent azgéional documents), together with all amendmémseto, and (ii) a short form or long
form certificate of good standing, status or corpdie, as applicable, together with any bring-doemtificates or facsimiles, if any, for each
Loan Party from its jurisdiction of organizatiomah dated a recent date on or prior to the AmentiMen2 Effective Date.

5. The Administrative Agent shall have receivectificate, signed by the chief financial officarteeasurer of each Borrower, on
the Amendment No. 2 Effective Date (i) stating thatDefault has occurred and is continuing, (gtisig that the representations and warra
contained in Article 11l of the Amended Credit Agraent and Section Il of this Amendment are trug esrrect as of such date, and
(iii) certifying any other factual matters as magyreasonably requested by the Administrative Agent.

6. The Lenders, the Collateral Agents and the Adstrattive Agent shall have received all other femuired to be paid, including
pursuant to the Fee Letters (as defined in the AledrCredit Agreement) and Section VI hereof, ahéxgenses for which invoices have beer
presented (including the reasonable fees and egparisegal counsel), on or before the Amendment2Neffective Date.

7. The Administrative Agent shall have receivedlency certificate, in form and substance satisfigcto the Administrative
Agent, from a Financial Officer.

8. Each Collateral Agent shall have received thstmecent Aggregate Borrowing Base Certificate Bodtowing Base Certificates
required to be delivered pursuant to Section 5fGheCredit Agreement.

9. At the time of and immediately after giving efféo this Amendment, the Borrowersggregate Availability shall not be less tt
$75,000,000.

10. The Administrative Agent and the Administrat®ellateral Agent shall have received updated apalsof the equipment and
real property of the Loan Parties from an apprasséected and engaged by the Administrative Agamd,prepared on a basis satisfactory to th
Administrative Agent and the Administrative Colla@keAgent, such appraisals to include, without tation, information required by applicable
law and regulations, with such appraisals beirth@sole cost and expense of the Loan Parties.

11. The Administrative Agent shall have receivednsather documents as the Administrative AgentOtsbursement Agent, any
Issuing Bank, any Lender or their respective coumsg have reasonably requested.

12. The amendments contemplated by this Amendmemieamitted pursuant to each of the 2009 Inderdncethe 2010 Indenture.
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lll.  Representations and Warranties of the Loarti€arTo induce the other parties hereto to entertintoAmendment, each Loan Party
represents and warrants to each Lender and eaait Ag®f the date hereof as follov

1. Each Loan Party has the legal power and aughtariéxecute and deliver this Amendment and thieerf of each Loan Party
executing this Amendment have been duly authoriaezkecute and deliver the same and bind such Paaty with respect to the provisions
hereof.

2. This Amendment has been duly executed and detiiey each Loan Party that is a party hereto.

3. This Amendment and the Amended Credit Agreeraaoh constitutes the legal, valid and binding @tiians of each Loan Party,
enforceable against such Loan Party in accordatitbeiterterms, subject to applicable bankruptcgpirency, reorganization, moratorium or
other laws affecting creditors’ rights generallydasubject to general principles of equity, regasslef whether considered in a proceeding in
equity or at law.

4. The execution and delivery by each Loan ParthisfAmendment, the performance by each Loan Rdiitg obligations under
the Amended Credit Agreement and under the othanl@ocuments to which it is a party and the consation of the transactions
contemplated by the Amended Credit Agreement aadther Loan Documents: (i) do not require any eahsr approval of, registration or
filing with, or any other action by, any Governmamuthority, except such as have been obtainedaate and are in full force and effect and
except for filings necessary to perfect Liens @dagiursuant to the Loan Documents, (ii) will nailate any Requirement of Law applicable to
any Loan Party or any of its Subsidiaries, (iiiJlwbt violate or result in a default under anyeéndlure or other agreement governing
Indebtedness or any other material agreement er aibtrument binding upon any Loan Party or anigsoRestricted Subsidiaries, or give rise
to a right thereunder to require any payment tombde by any Loan Party or any of its Restricteds&lidries and (iv) will not result in the
creation or impaosition of any Lien on any assetmf Loan Party or any of its Restricted Subsidsaréxcept Liens created pursuant to the L
Documents.

5. Each Borrower and each other Loan Party heresffirms all covenants, representations and waasmade by it in the Credit
Agreement and the other Loan Documents and agreesamfirms that all such representations and wéga are true and correct in all
material respects on and as of the date of thisn&iment as though made on and as of such date,téecemy representation and warranty
made as of an earlier date, which representatidmemranty remains true and correct in all mategapects as of such earlier date.

6. Each Borrower has caused to be conducted aupbneview of the terms of the Credit Agreement #edother Loan Documer
and each Borrower’s and its Subsidiaries’ operati&ince the Effective Date and, as of the datedfiamd after giving effect to the terms
hereof, no Default has occurred and is continuing.
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V. Pos-Closing Covenant.

1. No later than 30 days following the Amendment Ri&ffective Date (or such longer period as mapdeed to by the
Administrative Agent and each Collateral Agent,teawits sole discretion), to the extent not pregly provided to the Administrative
Collateral Agent or the UK Security Trustee, aslapple, such Agent shall have received (i) updatedk powers or stock transfer forms, as
applicable, for each certificate representing theras of Equity Interests pledged pursuant to dwufty Agreements, in each case executed i
blank by a duly authorized officer of the pleddgeereof and (ii) updated allonges or transfer forassapplicable, for each promissory note
pledged to the Administrative Collateral Agentioe UK Security Trustee, as applicable, in each easeuted in blank by a duly authorized
officer of the pledgor thereof. For purposes o$ féragraph, an officer is duly authorized to et@such stock power, allonge or transfer form
if he or she is serving in the capacity set fortrsach power or transfer form at the time such pawéransfer form is delivered to the
Administrative Collateral Agent.

V. Reference to and Effect on the Credit Agreen.

1. Upon the effectiveness of this Amendment purst@Bection llabove, on and after the date hereof, each refeiartbe Credit
Agreement to “this Agreement,” “hereunder,” “hergdherein” or words of like import shall mean abd a reference to the Credit Agreement
as modified hereby.

2. Except as specifically amended or modified by &mendment and the Reaffirmation Agreements éiged in the Amended
Credit Agreement), the Credit Agreement and aleottocuments, instruments and agreements execudiéor @elivered in connection
therewith, shall remain in full force and effeatdeare hereby ratified and confirmed.

3. The execution, delivery and effectiveness of fhinendment shall not operate as a waiver of aght,rpower or remedy of the
Administrative Agent, any other Agent or the Lergjaror constitute a waiver of any provision of @redit Agreement or any other docume
instruments and agreements executed and/or defiviei@nnection therewith.

VI. Costs and Expense&ach Borrower agrees to pay all reasonable cpboket expenses, including the reasonable feesgeh and
disbursements of counsel for the Administrative tgend the Co-Collateral Agent, incurred by any dtgend any of its Affiliates in
connection with the preparation, arrangement, ei@tand enforcement of this Amendment and all oihgtruments, agreements and other
documents executed in connection herewith. Allsasid expenses in connection with this Amendmentiae on or prior to the effective date
of this Amendment.

VIl.  Miscellaneous.

1. Governing Law THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUE IN ACCORDANCE WITH, AND
ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN ANY BORROWER AND ANY OTHER PARTHERETO ARISING OUT OF, CONNECTED WITH,
RELATED TO, OR INCIDENTAL TO THE RELATIONSHIP ESTABSHED BETWEEN THEM IN CONNECTION WITH, THIS
AMENDMENT, THE CREDIT
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AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS, AND WETHER ARISING IN CONTRACT, TORT, EQUITY, OR
OTHERWISE, SHALL BE RESOLVED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THLAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK (INCLUDING 5-1401
OF THE GENERAL OBLIGATION LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW @RK BUT OTHERWISE WITHOUT REGARD TO THE
CONFLICTS OF LAWS PROVISIONS).

2. Waiver. To induce the Administrative Agent and Lenderenter into this Amendment, each Loan Party furduknowledges
that it has no actual or potential defense, offtdatm, counterclaim or cause of action againstAtiministrative Agent or any Secured Party
any actions or events occurring on or before the Hareof, and each Loan Party hereby waives dedses any right to assert same.

3. Headings Section headings in this Amendment are includgeih for convenience of reference only, are nat glethis
Amendment and shall not affect the constructioroofe taken into consideration in interpretings #timendment.

4. Terms GenerallyReferences in this Amendment, the Credit Agredrand the Amended Credit Agreement to the words
“clause” and “paragraph” shall be construed to ltheesame meaning.

5. Counterparts This Amendment may be executed in any numbeoohterparts, all of which taken together shall tituie one
agreement, and any of the parties hereto may exditist Amendment by signing any such counterpagtivBry of an executed counterpart of a
signature page of this Amendment by facsimile oother electronic image scan transmission (inclgdiia e-mail) shall be effective as
delivery of a manually executed counterpart of hisendment. The Administrative Agent may also regjtinat any such documents and
signatures delivered by facsimile or by other etadt image scan transmission be confirmed by aualynsigned original thereof; provided
that the failure to request or deliver the samd slod limit the effectiveness of any document grsture delivered by facsimile or other
electronic image scan transmission.

6. No Strict ConstructionThe parties hereto have participated jointlyhia hegotiation and drafting of this Amendment, @nedit
Agreement and the other Loan Documents. In theteueambiguity or question of intent or interpritatarises, this Amendment, the Credit
Agreement and the other Loan Documents shall betaged as if drafted jointly by the parties heratal no presumption or burden of proof
shall arise favoring or disfavoring any party bytwe of the authorship of any provisions of this @mdment, the Credit Agreement or any of
other Loan Documents.

7. Amendment Constitutes L oan Documeiihis Amendment shall constitute a “Loan Documdat’purposes of the Credit
Agreement and the other Loan Documents.

8. Amendments to Security AgreemenEach Lender party hereto hereby consents torttemdments contained in, and directs the
Administrative Agent and the Collateral Agent tdegrinto, the Canadian Reaffirmation Agreement @iedU.S. Reaffirmation Agreement,
each as defined in the Amended Credit Agreement.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally blgnk.
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EXECUTION VERSIOM
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been dulscexed as of the day and year first above written.

BORROWERS:
COTT CORPORATION CORPORATION COT
By /s/ Jason Ausher

Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

COTT BEVERAGES INC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

CLIFFSTAR LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

COTT BEVERAGES LIMITED

By /s/ Gregory Leiter
Name: Gregory Leitel
Title: Director

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



OTHER LOAN PARTIES:
156775 CANADA INC.
By /s/ Jason Ausher

Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

967979 ONTARIO LIMITED

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

804340 ONTARIO LIMITED

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

2011438 ONTARIO LIMITED

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

COTT RETAIL BRANDS LIMITED

By /s/ Gregory Leiter
Name: Gregory Leitel
Title: Director

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



COTT LIMITED

By /s/ Gregory Leiter
Name; Gregory Leitel
Title: Director

COTT EUROPE TRADING LIMITED

By /s/ Gregory Leiter
Name; Gregory Leitel
Title: Director

COTT PRIVATE LABEL LIMITED

By /s/ Gregory Leiter
Name: Gregory Leitel
Title: Director

COTT NELSON (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

By /s/ Gregory Leiter
Name; Gregory Leitel
Title: Director

COTT (NELSON) LIMITED

By /s/ Gregory Leiter
Name: Gregory Leitel
Title: Director

COTT USA FINANCE LLC

By /s/ Jerry Hoyle
Name: Jerry Hoyle
Title: Authorized Representativi

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



COTT HOLDINGS INC.

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

INTERIM BCB, LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

COTT VENDING INC.

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

COTT INVESTMENT, L.L.C.

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

COTT USA CORP

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



COTT U.S. HOLDINGS LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

COTT U.S. ACQUISITION LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

COTT ACQUISITION LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

STAR REAL PROPERTY LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

CAROLINE LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name: Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



COTT UK ACQUISITION LIMITED

By: /s/ Jerry Hoyle

Name Jerry Hoyle
Title: Director

COTT ACQUISITION LIMITED

By: /s/ Jerry Hoyle

Name Jerry Hoyle
Title: Director

COTT LUXEMBOURG S.A.R.L.

By: /s/ Jerry Hoyle

Name Jerry Hoyle
Title: Class A Manage

By: /s/ Luc Sunnen

Name Luc Sunner
Title: Class B Manage

Signature page to Amendment No.

Credit Agreemel



EXECUTION VERSIOM

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., individually, as an
Issuing Bank, as a Swingline Lender and as a Le

By /s/ David J. Waugh
Name; David J. Waug!
Title: Senior Vice Presidel

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as Administrative
Agent and as Administrative Collateral Ag

By /s/ David J. Waugh
Name: David J. Waug!
Title: Senior Vice Presidel

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., TORONTO
BRANCH, as an Issuing Bank, as a Swingline Lender
and as a Lendke

By /s/ Agostino A. Marchetti
Name: Agostino A. Marchett
Title: Senior Vice Presidel

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., LONDON
BRANCH, as an Issuing Bank, as a Swingline Lender
and as a Lendke

By /s/ Timothy |. Jacob
Name: Timothy I. Jacot
Title: Senior Vice Presidet

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., LONDON
BRANCH, as UK Security Truste

By /s/ Timothy |. Jacob
Name; Timothy I. Jacok
Title: Senior Vice Presider

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



BANK OF AMERICA, N.A,,
as Documentation Agent and as a Ler

By /s/ Andrew A. Doherty
Name: Andrew A. Doherty
Title: Senior Vice Presidel

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., CANADA BRANCH,
as a Lende

By /s/ Medina Sales de Andrade
Name: Medina Sales de Andrat
Title: Vice Presiden

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORPORATION
as C«Collateral Agent and as a Lenc

By /s/ Philip F. Carfora
Name: Philip F. Carfore
Title: Duly Authorized Signator

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



DEUTSCHE BANK AG NEW YORK BRANCH
as a Lende

By /s/ Carin Keegan
Name: Carin Keegar
Title: Director

By /s/ Evelyn Thierry
Name; Evelyn Thierry
Title: Director

DEUTSCHE BANK AG, CANADA BRANCH,
as a Lende

By /s/ Paul M. Jurist
Name: Paul M. Juris
Title: Managing Director and Principal Offic

By /s/ Marcellus Leung
Name; Marcellus Leung
Title: Assistant Vice Preside

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



WELLS FARGO CAPITAL FINANCE, LLC,
as a Lende

By /s/ David Hill
Name: David Hill
Title: Vice Presiden

WELLS FARGO CAPITAL FINANCE
CORPORATION CANADA,
as a Lende

By /s/ Lawrence Clement
Name: Lawrence Clemer
Title: Senior Vice Presidel

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.
(LONDON BRANCH), as a Lende

By /s/ David Hill
Name: David Hill
Title: Vice Presiden

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as a Lende

By /s/ Todd W. Milenius
Name: Todd W. Milenius
Title: Vice Presiden

PNC BANK, CANADA BRANCH,
as a Lende

By /s/ Mike Danby
Name:; Mike Danby
Title: Assistant Vice Preside

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA NES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

[, Jerry Fowden, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Cott Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or eéonditate a material fact necessar
to make the statements made, in light of the cistarnces under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this
report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including ithsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is
being preparec

b)  Designed such internal control over financiglating, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigsslosure controls and procedures and presenteisineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thHegeovered by thi
report based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial reporting;
and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrarg’ ability to record, process, summarize and re
financial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

November 1, 201 /sl Jerry Fowdel
Jerry Fowder
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA NES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, Jay Wells, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Cott Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or eéonditate a material fact necessar
to make the statements made, in light of the cistarnces under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this
report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including ithsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is
being preparec

b)  Designed such internal control over financiglating, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigsslosure controls and procedures and presenteisineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thHegeovered by thi
report based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial reporting;
and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrarg’ ability to record, process, summarize and re
financial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

November 1, 201 /sl Jay Wells
Jay Wells
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Jerry Fowden, Chief Executived®ffof Cott Corporation (the “Companytas executed this certification in connection:
the filing with the Securities and Exchange Comiois®f the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 1@€the quarter ended September 29,
2012 (the “Report”).
The undersigned hereby certifies that to the bielsiscknowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of
the Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdctrtification as of the¢  day of November, 2012.

/sl Jerry Fowdel
Jerry Fowder
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Jay Wells, Chief Financial Offise€ott Corporation (the “Company”), has executad certification in connection with the
filing with the Securities and Exchange Commissibthe Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtlfar quarter ended September 29,
2012 (the “Report”).
The undersigned hereby certifies that to the bielsiscknowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of
the Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdctrtification as of the¢  day of November, 2012.

/sl Jay Wells
Jay Wells
Chief Financial Office




